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          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Welcome to the

          3  Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting

          4  and Maritime Uses. My name is Jessica Lappin, I'm

          5  the Chair, joined today by Council Member Miguel

          6  Martinez of Manhattan, Council Member Leroy Comrie

          7  of Queens, Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo of

          8  the Bronx, and Council Member Rosie Mendez of

          9  Manhattan.

         10                 We have a few items on the agenda

         11  today, and I'm going to start with the landmarks,

         12  because we have a larger group of people to testify

         13  on some of the other items.

         14                 So, first we're going to hear from

         15  Diane Jackier from the Landmarks Commission.

         16                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

         17  Members. My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

         18  External Affairs for the Landmarks Preservation

         19  Commission. I'm here today to testify on the

         20  Commission's designation of the Manhattan Avenue

         21  Historic District in Manhattan.

         22                 On March 13th, 2007, the Landmarks

         23  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         24  designation. Nine people testified in favor,

         25  including representatives of Congressman Charles
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          2  Rengal, Manhattan Borough President Scott Stringer,

          3  Assemblymember Daniel J. O'Donnell, Manhattan

          4  Community Board 7, the Historic Districts Council,

          5  Landmarks Conservancy, Landmark West and the New

          6  York Chapter of the Victorian Society in America.

          7  There were no speakers in opposition.

          8                 The Commission also received letters

          9  of support from City Council Members Melissa

         10  Mark-Viverito and Inez Dickens. State Senator Bill

         11  Perkins and the Duke Ellington Boulevard

         12  Neighborhood Association also submitted letters of

         13  support.

         14                 On May 15th, 2007, the Commission

         15  voted to designate Manhattan Avenue in New York City

         16  Historic District. Located on the Upper West Side,

         17  one block west of Central Park, between West 104th

         18  and 106th Streets, Manhattan Avenue was originally

         19  called New Avenue, opened in 1868 and received its

         20  current name in 1884.

         21                 Mass Transit played an important role

         22  in the development of the area, especially

         23  construction of the Ninth Avenue elevated railway,

         24  which began service to 104th Street in 1879.

         25                 The Historic District contains 40
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          2  buildings, including 37 three-story row houses, one

          3  six-story apartment building, and two structures

          4  built by General Memorial Hospital for the treatment

          5  of cancer allied diseases, originally known as "The

          6  New York Cancer Hospital," a designated New York

          7  City landmark.

          8                 All of the houses in the district

          9  were built during a five-year period from 1885 to

         10  1890. The earliest row, located on the West Side of

         11  Manhattan Avenue, between West 105th and 106th

         12  Street, was designed by Architect Joseph M. Dunn.

         13  CPH Gilbert, who had become one of the best known

         14  residential architects in New York City was

         15  responsible for the row across the street on the

         16  east side of Manhattan Avenue from 105th to 106th

         17  Streets.

         18                 Edward L. Angel designed the block to

         19  the south on the west side of Manhattan Avenue

         20  between 104th and 105th Street. Built as speculative

         21  construction these brick and stone faced houses were

         22  planned as picturesque ensembles, incorporating

         23  varied elements associated with the popular Queen

         24  Anne Romanesque Revival styles, including stoops

         25  with iron railings, terra-cotta reliefs, projecting
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          2  metal bay windows and unusual cornices, frequently

          3  crowned by Sunburst pediments.

          4                 The district also contains a pair of

          5  early 20th century buildings that were constructed

          6  as additions to the hospital.

          7                 Because the buildings were built

          8  within a five-year period, have the same scale

          9  massing materials and details, Manhattan Avenue

         10  Historic District exhibits an architectural

         11  cohesiveness unique to New York City and survives as

         12  a beautiful reminder of the origins of the Upper

         13  West Side.

         14                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         15  the designation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. I

         17  wanted to note for my colleagues this item is in

         18  Melissa Mark-Viverito's district. I, along with

         19  Council Member Mendez, and Council Member Palma,

         20  were able to walk this district with Council Member

         21  Viverito who is in support of this, and I wanted to

         22  reiterate that it really is a very rich collection

         23  of row houses with terra cotta and other detail

         24  intact and it's a very special district that is

         25  worthy of designation.
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          2                 Do any of my colleagues have

          3  questions or comments?

          4                 Okay, the hearing on this item is

          5  closed, which is the Manhattan Avenue Historic

          6  District. I wanted to open the hearing on the

          7  Nathaniel J. and Anne C. Wyeth House, which is in

          8  Council -- actually, since Council Member Oddo is on

          9  his way, let's hold off on that, and open the

         10  hearing on 63 Nassau Street, which is in Council

         11  Member Gerson's district.

         12                 If the Sergeant-At-Arms could call

         13  down to the lounge, I know that Council Member

         14  Gerson is here.

         15                 And Ms. Jackier, if you'd like to

         16  begin?

         17                 MS. JACKIER: Sure. Good morning

         18  again.

         19                 On November 14th, 2006, the Landmarks

         20  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         21  designation of 63 Nassau Street in Manhattan. Seven

         22  people spoke in favor, including representatives of

         23  Margot Gayle, Founder of the Friends of Cast Iron

         24  Architecture, the Municipal Arts Society of New

         25  York, the New York Landmarks Conservancy, the
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          2  Historic Districts Council, and the Metropolitan

          3  Chapter of the Victorian Society in America.

          4                 A representative of the building's

          5  owner testified against designation. In addition,

          6  the Commission received several communications in

          7  support of designation, including a resolution from

          8  Manhattan Community Board 1.

          9                 The building had been previously

         10  heard by the Commission on December 27th, 1966, and

         11  January 31st, 1967. On May 15th, 2007, the

         12  Commission designated 63 Nassau Street a New York

         13  City Landmark.

         14                 The five-story Italianate style

         15  cast-iron front facade on the building at NO. 63

         16  Nassau Street was almost certainly produced by James

         17  Bogardus around 1857 to 1859. Bogardus was

         18  commissioned by Augustus Thomas to remodel the

         19  existing structure at 63 Nassau Street in order to

         20  capitalize on the commercial changes in the area

         21  around Maiden Lane, which was being transformed into

         22  a major jewelry district.

         23                 James Bogardus was the pioneer of

         24  cast iron architecture in America, making it an

         25  extremely rare extant example of his work. It is one
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          2  of only five known Bogardus buildings in the United

          3  States, four of them are actually in New York City,

          4  and is also one of the oldest surviving cast iron

          5  fronted buildings in the City and one of the very

          6  few located in Lower Manhattan.

          7                 The attribution of this facade to

          8  Bogardus was originally made by Margot Gayle,

          9  Founder of the Friends of Cast Iron Architecture and

         10  co-author of the definitive monograph on Bogardus,

         11  based primarily on a signature characteristic known

         12  only to buildings definitely linked to Bogardus,

         13  namely bas-relief medallions of George Washington

         14  and Benjamin Franklin, which are found on the third

         15  story.

         16                 The elegant and finely detailed

         17  design originally featured two- and three-story

         18  arcades formed by elongated fluted Corinthian

         19  columns, rope moldings, arches with faceted

         20  keystones and foliate spandrels.

         21                 The facade is terminated by a

         22  widely-projecting, medallioned foliate cornice

         23  supported by a corbel table. Today the building

         24  remains an early and significant surviving

         25  commercial building with a cast iron front dating
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          2  from the 1840s and'50s. The Commission urges you to

          3  affirm the designation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And I wanted to

          5  note that we've been joined by Council Member James

          6  Oddo, our Minority Leader from Staten Island, and

          7  Council Member John Liu from Queens.

          8                 And I wanted to ask about the

          9  importance of preserving cast iron architecture. You

         10  mentioned there were only five in the United States,

         11  so could you speak just a minute to the importance

         12  of preserving this style of architecture?

         13                 MS. JACKIER: Well, particularly cast

         14  iron, there is actually the SoHo Cast Iron Historic

         15  District, so there are other cast iron buildings in

         16  the City, but the fact that this one is designed by

         17  James Bogardus, who is the one who created the

         18  patents for cast iron, it was something when it was

         19  created, because very popular because it was easily

         20  fabricated and it made buildings more easily to

         21  construct, it was apparently fireproof.

         22                 You were able to sort of mold the

         23  cast iron to have intricate details that you weren't

         24  really able to do with bricks or limestone.

         25                 So, it was something that was very
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          2  special, very important, and James Bogardus was the

          3  first person who really was able to patent all of

          4  these cast iron processes and the fact that he has

          5  only, there are only five buildings that he has

          6  designed that survived, and this is one of them,

          7  makes it just so incredibly important.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Where are the

          9  other four, just out of curiosity; do you know?

         10                 MS. JACKIER: I know it's in the

         11  designation report, if you'll bear with me for a

         12  second.

         13                 Once I leave I'll find them, I know

         14  they're in the designation report.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. That's all

         16  right. If they're in the Designation Report --

         17                 MS. JACKIER: Here it is.

         18                 There are only five surviving or

         19  attributed to Bogardus. The Bruce Building, which is

         20  at 254 to 260 Canal Street. The Hopkins Brothers

         21  Building at 75 Murray Street. 63 Nassau Street. The

         22  Kitchen Montrose Store, 85 Leonard Street. And then

         23  the other one is an ironclad building, which is

         24  built in 1862, which is in Coopers Town.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 While I call the next panel up to

          4  testify, I wanted to give Council Member Gerson a

          5  chance, if you'd like to make a comment. The next

          6  panel will be Simeon Bankoff, Historic Districts

          7  Council; Roger Lang from the Landmarks Conservancy

          8  and Franny Eberhart from Friends of Cast Iron

          9  Architecture who are going to testify in favor. So,

         10  why don't the three of you come up. And as you do,

         11  Council Member Gerson, do you want to say anything

         12  on the record?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I will be very

         14  brief, Madam Chair. I know that disappoints my

         15  colleagues. Especially Council Member Comrie.

         16                 I just want to strongly endorse the

         17  position articulated by the Landmarks Commission and

         18  Community Board 1. It's always disappointing when we

         19  do not have the concurrence of a site owner, but we

         20  do know that -- I do believe and I feel confident

         21  that Landmark designation will prove ultimately,

         22  given the real estate climate and the situation in

         23  Lower Manhattan, actually beneficial to the site

         24  owner, but of paramount concern, we all know Lower

         25  Manhattan is rich in the history which relates to
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          2  our entire City. This building is significant

          3  historically and architecturally for reasons

          4  expressed and I strongly, strongly express, for

          5  reasons which will be expressed by members of the

          6  upcoming distinguished panel, and I strongly urge my

          7  colleagues to support Landmark designation of this

          8  item.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 MS. JACKIER: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Please --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Excuse me. And

         13  I beg my colleagues' indulgence due to the hour if I

         14  do not remain. Thank you.

         15                 MS. EBERHART: Thank you. My name is

         16  Franny Eberhart, and I'm speaking for the Friends of

         17  Cast Iron Architecture, and most particularly I'm

         18  speaking for Margot Gayle, who is not able to be

         19  with us today, but who is certainly here in spirit.

         20  You've heard her invoked in the testimony by the

         21  Landmarks Commission.

         22                 For those of you who don't know,

         23  Margot Gayle is 99. She does come downtown

         24  sometimes, but we thought we would give her a pass

         25  today.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And an esteemed

          3  constituent of mine.

          4                 MS. EBERHART: And a esteemed

          5  constituent of Jessica Lappin's, as am I, as a

          6  matter of fact.

          7                 I want you to know that Margot is 100

          8  percent fit mentally. She is currently reading a

          9  biography of Lafayette, but just a little frail, so

         10  we, as I said, have given her a pass.

         11                 She did indeed begin advocating for

         12  this building and other cast iron buildings about 50

         13  years ago. She really brought cast iron, the

         14  material and the art, to the attention of the

         15  American public. Without her we would not have the

         16  SoHo Cast Iron District, we would probably have a

         17  freeway. And she testified on behalf of this

         18  building through me at the Landmarks Commission, and

         19  would most assuredly support it now as well.

         20                 Margot is 99. Her birthday, her 100th

         21  birthday will be in May, but because of her age we

         22  celebrate her birthday every month, and I think a

         23  great September birthday present would be the

         24  affirmation of this designation by this Committee.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. BANKOFF: Good morning, Council

          3  Members. Simeon Bankoff, Historic Districts Council.

          4  It's a pleasure to be testifying in front of you,

          5  and I hope that everybody had a nice summer.

          6                 I am testifying specifically on 63

          7  Nassau Street. HDC strongly supports, we support the

          8  designation of all of these, but 63 Nassau Street is

          9  of particular interest to us. It's one of the

         10  stand-out buildings in the Fulton Nassau Historic

         11  District, which is a national registered district

         12  that we had been promoting for the past few years.

         13  It had been deemed by the Preservation League of New

         14  York State one of the seven to save in 2004, and

         15  through our efforts and through the support of the

         16  New York State Council on the Arts, we got it listed

         17  on the National Register of Historic Places.

         18                 In addition, 63 Nassau, as Franny and

         19  Diane mentioned, is an incredibly important

         20  architectural and historical survivor of an era in

         21  New York City history that is really how our City

         22  started to shape the way it is now, and there are

         23  very few survivors like it. Bogardus also is a

         24  pivotal figure in the development of the City as we

         25  see it.
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          2                 So, for all these reasons, and for

          3  the reasons that we're very thrilled that LBC

          4  continues to work on its backlog of buildings heard

          5  but not designated, we urge the support of this and

          6  also the other three.

          7                 MR. LANG: Good morning, Chair Lappin

          8  and members of the Landmark Subcommittee. I'm Roger

          9  Lang, speaking on behalf of the New York Landmarks

         10  Conservancy.

         11                 Could I ask, do you want testimony on

         12  just 63 Nassau at the moment?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If you'd like to

         14  at this point comment on all the landmarks, that's

         15  probably the easiest.

         16                 MR. LANG: Sure. Thank you. I am here

         17  today to urge you to sustain all three designations

         18  that are before you at this hearing. The Conservancy

         19  supported all three before the Landmarks

         20  Preservation Commission.

         21                 I'll be brief. I understand that

         22  you've toured the Manhattan Avenue Historic

         23  District, so I'll just ask you to believe your eyes.

         24  It's a worthy district with a distinct sense of

         25  place, and it's fitting, I think that this
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          2  designation follows on the heels of the splendid

          3  restoration of the nearby New York Cancer Hospital,

          4  which won one of the Conservancy's Lucy Moses

          5  Preservation Awards two years ago.

          6                 Similarly, the Wyeth House on Staten

          7  Island is another gem and indisputable landmark.

          8  Now, to 63 Nassau, New York City has the world's

          9  preeminent collection of cast iron buildings. Most

         10  enjoy landmarks protection, including, as Diane

         11  noted, the hypotonus SoHo Cast Iron Historic

         12  District. This one should be similarly protected and

         13  honored. As you heard from Franny, Margot Gayle, who

         14  is the leading expert in the field has definitively

         15  attributed this to James Bogardus.

         16                 If I may be permitted one analogy, he

         17  was the Thomas Alva Edison of Cast Iron. And you

         18  should certainly assist the Commission by sustaining

         19  and protecting this very important work. Adding it

         20  to our collection of cast iron buildings boasts this

         21  preeminent inventory which many people worldwide

         22  come to see. It is a tourist attraction of the first

         23  order and it is part of our architectural heritage

         24  that we share with the world.

         25                 We concur with Council Member Gerson,
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          2  that owning a landmark would prove in this instance,

          3  as it has in so many others, to be not a burden, but

          4  rather an economic benefit to its owners. And I

          5  thank you for the opportunity to present our views.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Seeing no one else to testify on this

          9  item, this hearing is -- oh, excuse me, Council

         10  Member Comrie.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do you know

         12  where the other forecast iron buildings are? Does

         13  anyone on the panel know, that it was said earlier

         14  that there were?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think Diane

         16  Jackier stated in her testimony where the other four

         17  were located.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Oh, she did?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: She did.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I guess I went

         21  out of the room. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         23  much. This hearing is closed.

         24                 The last landmark on the agenda is in

         25  Council Member Oddo's district. The Nathaniel and
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          2  Anne C. Wyeth House.

          3                 If Ms. Jackier will come back and

          4  testify on that?

          5                 MS. JACKIER: Thank you. Good morning,

          6  again, Council members. On April 10th, 2007, the

          7  Landmarks Commission held a public hearing on the

          8  proposed designation of the Anne and Nathaniel Wyeth

          9  House at 190 Meisner Avenue in Staten Island.

         10                 Six people testified in support,

         11  including a representative of the owner, and

         12  representatives of the Preservation League of Staten

         13  Island, the Historic District Council, the

         14  Metropolitan Chapter of the Victorian Society in

         15  America and the West Brighton Restoration Society.

         16                 There were no speakers in opposition.

         17  The Commission also received letters in support from

         18  City Council Member James Oddo, the Municipal Arts

         19  Society and the Rego-Forest Preservation Council.

         20                 The Commission previously held a

         21  public hearing on the Building on September 13th,

         22  1966. On May 15th, 2007, the Commission designated

         23  the Wyeth House a New York City landmark.

         24                 Picturesquely sited on Light House

         25  Hill, this impressive Italianate Villa constructed
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          2  around 1856 is a fine example of the mid-19th

          3  Century villas which once dotted the hillsides of

          4  Staten Island and are now becoming increasingly

          5  rare.

          6                 Named for his uncle, the noted

          7  explorer of the Pacific Northwest, Nathaniel Wyeth

          8  was a prominent corporate attorney, State legislator

          9  and civic leader who maintained a law office in this

         10  house, as well as in New York City in Manhattan.

         11                 In the mid-1920s the house was

         12  acquired by opera star Graham Marr, who had studied

         13  architecture at Columbia University before embarking

         14  on his operatic career.

         15                 The large two-and one-half-story

         16  house is faced with brick and trimmed with

         17  sandstone. It was among the earliest rural

         18  residences in the Italianate style on Staten Island

         19  and displays the cubic form, low-hipped roof, wide

         20  overhanging eaves supported by decorative brackets,

         21  paired chimneys with molded caps and octagonal

         22  cupola typical of Italianate designs.

         23                 Recently the current owner began

         24  restoring the paired brackets that had been removed

         25  from the house's crowning cornice and installed new
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          2  wood parapets above the entrance porch and at the

          3  captain's walk.

          4                 The building remains an incredible

          5  example of mid-19th Century Italianate-style villas,

          6  and the Commission urges you to affirm the

          7  designation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          9  Oddo, would you like to?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: No.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Any questions

         12  from my colleagues? This hearing is closed.

         13                 I'm going to ask, before we move to

         14  the item in Council Member Arroyo's district, ask

         15  the Council to call for a vote on the Landmarks and

         16  urge a favorable vote.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Lappin.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Aye.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  Comrie.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Liu.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member
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          2  Martinez.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          5  Arroyo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Yes.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          8  Mendez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         11  Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         14  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         15  no abstentions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Was Mr. Wyeth a

         17  republican or a democrat? Not that it's of any

         18  relevance. Just curious.

         19                 Okay, I want to open the hearing on

         20  the Hunts Point plant in Council Member Arroyo's

         21  district and ask the Administration, the Department

         22  of Environmental Protection and the Department of

         23  Parks, to come and testify. I think we have

         24  Assistant Commissioner Josh Laird from Parks, and

         25  I'm not sure who is here from DEP.
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          2                 And actually, before any of my

          3  colleagues leave, I wanted to make sure I mention

          4  that we are going to reconvene tomorrow morning at

          5  9:30. 9:30 tomorrow morning. Council Member Liu.

          6  John. 9:30 tomorrow morning we're going to

          7  reconvene, okay?

          8                 Okay. In addition to Assistant

          9  Commissioner Laird, we have DEP Commissioner Emily

         10  Lloyd. So, whoever would like to begin the

         11  presentation, please proceed.

         12                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I will begin in

         13  just one moment. I'm trying to turn my phone off.

         14                 Good morning, Chair Lappin, and

         15  members of the Committee, Subcommittee. I am Emily

         16  LLoyd, Commissioner of the New York City Department

         17  of Environmental Protection. Thank you for the

         18  opportunity to testify regarding DEP's ULURP

         19  application for the proposed Phase III upgrade of

         20  the Hunt's Point wastewater treatment plant.

         21                 Before I begin, I want to thank the

         22  members of the Hunts Point Monitoring Committee,

         23  HPMC, and its sponsors, Congressman Jose Serrano,

         24  Bronx Borough President Carrion, Council Member and

         25  member of this Subcommittee, Maria del Carmen
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          2  Arroyo, and Chairman of Bronx Community Board 2,

          3  Roberto Garcia, for their work on so many aspects of

          4  this project.

          5                 In my testimony, I will describe

          6  DEP's overall wastewater treatment plant upgrade

          7  program, the specific work ongoing in the future at

          8  the Hunts Point Plant, and I will address concerns

          9  raised by the community, I hope.

         10                 But, first, let me explain briefly

         11  the function of the treatment plant. As you know,

         12  wastewater treatment plants perform a vital function

         13  by removing most organic waste from wastewater

         14  before it's released to local waterways by removing

         15  sludge for reuse. Sludge, now usually called

         16  "biosolids" was dumped into the ocean until the

         17  practice was outlawed. Instead of the costly and

         18  wasteful alternative of landfilling, biosolids are

         19  now beneficially reused as fertilizer. At the

         20  plants, physical and biological processes closely

         21  replicate how wetlands, rivers, streams and lakes

         22  naturally purify water. Treatment at these plants is

         23  quick, taking only about seven hours to remove most

         24  of the pollutants from the wastewater.

         25                 I'm just going to take one second, if
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          2  I may?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Commissioner,

          4  actually hold on for one moment, because I think we

          5  need to have you speaking into a microphone so this

          6  is recorded for the transcript.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Oh, okay. Here we

          8  go. Thank you.

          9                 The wastewater comes in from the

         10  Bronx here, underground, passes through this

         11  building and goes into primary treatment tanks which

         12  are along here. Primary settling tanks, where the

         13  first time the solids are allowed to settle out,

         14  grease and some other things float to the top and

         15  are skimmed off.

         16                 Then it goes to aeration tanks, which

         17  are right here, and into secondary settling tanks,

         18  which are located here. And at that point

         19  essentially the fluid, which is called the effluent,

         20  has been separated, and that then goes to be treated

         21  with chlorine to kill any remaining bacteria and

         22  goes out into the river.

         23                 The solids are sent up to sludge

         24  thickeners, which make them more solid, and then

         25  they go into what are called digesters, which is a
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          2  biological process and a heated process which kills

          3  any harmful bacteria in them before they are taken

          4  out to be turned into fertilizer, which then goes to

          5  cover golf courses, citrus groves in Florida I am

          6  told, gets put to very good reuse.

          7                 And this is the proposed location of

          8  the two new digesters and this, of course, is the

          9  new Barretto Point Park.

         10                 New York City built its first

         11  wastewater treatment plant at Coney Island in 1935

         12  to protect those beaches, and since then our

         13  wastewater plants have had to be upgraded for many

         14  reasons, including height and regulatory

         15  requirements, such as for secondary treatment of

         16  wastewater which removes most pollutants. Plants

         17  must be modernized to adopt newer, more efficient

         18  technologies.

         19                 Moreover, equipment that has reached

         20  the end of its useful life must be replaced. The

         21  upgrading of our treatment plant is also an integral

         22  part of NYC's goal to open 90 percent of our waters

         23  to recreation by preserving natural areas and

         24  reducing pollution in the water surrounding New York

         25  City.
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          2                 As more waterfront areas are

          3  reclaimed for residential commercial and

          4  recreational use, the quality of the adjacent water

          5  is an increasingly important priority.

          6                 Combined with an array of best

          7  management practices to minimize or prevent runoff,

          8  and the construction of retention facilities in some

          9  locations, plant upgrades are an important part of

         10  DEP's long-term plan to reduce combined sewer

         11  overflows by maximizing plant capacity during wet

         12  weather.

         13                 At Hunts Point, for example, the

         14  plant's various treatment units needed to be

         15  upgraded and enhanced so that during wet weather the

         16  plant could capture or treat as much wastewater and

         17  stormwater as possible. By doing those upgrades at

         18  Hunts Point and at other plants, DEP maximizes the

         19  capture of wastewater and stormwater, thereby

         20  minimizing the discharge of untreated flow and some

         21  raw sewer to the Harbor during rainstorms.

         22                 The Hunts Point Plant was built in

         23  1952, and is located on a 39-acre site adjacent to

         24  the East River, as you know, in the Hunts Point

         25  section of the Bronx.
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          2                 Since 2002, as part of the Citywide

          3  Upgrade Program, DEP has been carrying out a series

          4  of projects to maintain and improve various aspects

          5  of the plant's functioning.

          6                 The first upgrade improved flow at

          7  the plant to allow it to handle a peak wet weather

          8  capacity of 400 million gallons per day, as

          9  required. The plant's dry weather capacity is 200

         10  million gallons per day.

         11                 The second upgrade, which is still in

         12  progress, is enhancing the plant's nitrogen removal

         13  capabilities, this is to meet state and federal

         14  requirements.

         15                 The third phase, which is pertinent

         16  to the ULURP action under consideration here today,

         17  involves construction and upgrading to improve the

         18  solid handling facilities at the plant, with the

         19  second component that will further enhance nitrogen

         20  removal. Solids are the sludge that settles out of

         21  the wastewater that must be treated to prepare it

         22  for beneficial reuse. This is what the new

         23  egg-shaped digesters will accomplish.

         24                 This phase of construction is also

         25  required to rehabilitate or replace existing
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          2  facilities that are simply worn out.

          3                 Approximately ten years ago, DEP

          4  projected a need for additional space adjacent to

          5  the Hunts Point plant to accomplish the work I just

          6  described. As a result the agency began a process of

          7  investigating and reclaiming the Barretto Point

          8  site, a 13-acre City-owned former Brownfield site,

          9  immediately to the west of the Hunts Point

         10  Wastewater Treatment Plant. Between 1999 and 2002,

         11  in partnership with the New York City Economic

         12  Development Corporation and the Department of Parks

         13  and Recreation, and guided by committed community

         14  leaders who saw the potential for this waterfront

         15  site, DEP initiated a site investigation of the

         16  Barretto Point site.

         17                 For your consideration today, a

         18  five-acre parcel that is now proposed for mapping is

         19  the Barretto Point Park; the 4.3 acre parcel

         20  proposed for DEP for new digesters, and the 1.2 acre

         21  area proposed by DEP for construction staging before

         22  incorporation into the Barretto Point Park. The

         23  Barretto Point site is an example of New York City's

         24  commitment to Land Use decisions that look forward

         25  to the City's long-term needs, both in terms of the
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          2  conventional infrastructure that is essential to

          3  improve water quality, and the green infrastructure

          4  that is essential to our quality of life.

          5                 DEP recognizes that the Hunts Point

          6  Plan and its long-term construction will affect the

          7  community. Consequently, in addition to working with

          8  our colleagues on creating Barretto Point Park, we

          9  have been working with community members, the Hunts

         10  Point Monitoring Committee, or HPMC, and a

         11  consultant to obtain community input in selecting a

         12  project that will contribute to the tremendous work

         13  already going on to make the Hunts Point waterfront

         14  a sustainable, healthy, vibrant and accessible

         15  place.

         16                 At a design charrette held in

         17  December 2006, participants identified three

         18  priority options: 1) a boathouse facility at

         19  Lafayette Street, and streetscape improvements on

         20  Lafayette Avenue -- Lafayette Park, I apologize; 2)

         21  a multi-use facility focused on maintenance uses and

         22  environmental education; and 3) a floating swimming

         23  pool including streetscape work and the

         24  reconstruction of the Tiffany Street Pier. We look

         25  forward to continued collaboration with the
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          2  stakeholders and with the community board that is

          3  forming an ad hoc committee which will guide the

          4  next phase of this work.

          5                 Going forward, DEP is committed to

          6  fund a community liaison for the duration of the

          7  work at the Hunts Point Plant that is the subject of

          8  this application.

          9                 The liaison will be located at the

         10  Hunts Point site. DEP will also continue funding a

         11  technical advisor to provide assistance on specific

         12  issues.

         13                 For example, site remediation

         14  activities are of particular concern to the

         15  community. A technical advisor with qualifications

         16  in the area of brownfield clean-up may be needed.

         17                 I would also like to use this

         18  opportunity to address some of the concerns that

         19  have been brought to our attention by Council Member

         20  Arroyo, other elected officials of the Bronx and

         21  members of the community. We are very pleased to

         22  report that on the vast majority of the issues

         23  raised we believe we either have in place or will

         24  have in place by the time construction begins, a

         25  plan of action that addresses the particular
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          2  concerns.

          3                 There are, however, a few areas the

          4  community, HPMC or elected representatives requested

          5  changes in operations or proposed plant design we

          6  cannot accommodate.

          7                 I would like to explain why after

          8  serious consideration we cannot do so.

          9                 First, let me tell you how we intend

         10  to address the issues raised concerning odors, air

         11  quality, construction mitigation, noise and

         12  communications, where we believe we can address most

         13  concerns.

         14                 Odors. DEP is committed to be

         15  responsive to the desire of the community for

         16  monitoring of pollutants, both during construction

         17  and when the upgrade is complete, and of odors from

         18  the operation of the plant.

         19                 In cooperation with Council Member

         20  Arroyo and Community Board 2, DEP directed one of

         21  its consultants with expertise in order monitoring

         22  to inventory and characterize all odor sources

         23  within the Hunts Point peninsula.

         24                 Consultant, Richard Pope, or Malcolm

         25  Pirnie, began that process in late 2006 with a
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          2  series of inspections in the area and a report.

          3  Beginning September 14th, the consultant will

          4  continue that process with a follow-up series of

          5  inspections. Upon completion of the September 2007

          6  inspections and drawing on the odor investigations

          7  from March 2007, DEP's consultant will develop an

          8  analysis of the relative contributions of a broad

          9  array of odor sources alone with an action plan for

         10  the two facilities related to DEP. That odor source

         11  analysis and the DEP action plan will be shared with

         12  representatives of the Hunts Point Monitoring

         13  Committee, Council Member Arroyo, the Office of the

         14  Mayor and relevant City agencies.

         15                 As detailed in the EIS, DEP has

         16  installed numerous odor controls at the plant in

         17  recent years, and will be installing even more odor

         18  controlling this year and next.

         19                 In addition, studies have been

         20  conducted of the plant's uncontrolled sources to

         21  identify appropriate control measures.

         22                 For example, mobile misters will be

         23  used to control odors from digesters and sludge

         24  storage tanks during cleaning. A portable carbon

         25  odor control system will be required to operate at
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          2  all times during the cleaning of the digesters and

          3  sludge storage tanks and an odor counteractant will

          4  be utilized as needed for the dewatered residual.

          5  And DEP will be covering and treating air from

          6  effluent channel that we have identified as a

          7  significant odor source that we are not now

          8  controlling.

          9                 In addition to odor control measures,

         10  we will install hydrogen sulfide air monitors to

         11  monitor ambient air adjacent to the plant. The

         12  location of the air monitors will be determined with

         13  input from the community. I must mention what my

         14  staff said at public meetings, it is difficult to

         15  identify the source of the odors from fixed

         16  monitoring stations. Nonetheless, we will work to

         17  make the best possible use of the data we gather.

         18                 We are also very well aware of the

         19  concerns of the Hunts Point community about odors

         20  extend beyond the Hunts Point wastewater treatment

         21  plant to other facilities and other industries. As

         22  you know, however, DEP does have a connection to

         23  another facility in the area. Although the New York

         24  Organic Fertilizer Company, NYOFCO, is a privately

         25  owned facility in the Hunts Point area, it has been
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          2  under contract to DEP since its construction in

          3  1992.

          4                 NYOFCO has significantly improved its

          5  odor controls since the plant first began operation,

          6  and most significantly recently. Plant management

          7  has demonstrated its willingness to invest in

          8  further controls, including an enclosure for

          9  truck-loading operations which will capture more of

         10  the odors that are released from the sludge that is

         11  off-loaded from the trucks. DEP will continue to

         12  work with NYOFCO to implement odor controls,

         13  including operational adjustments, such as the

         14  scheduling of deliveries, and will report to the

         15  community on the facility's progress.

         16                 Of course, the human nose is a very

         17  sensitive monitoring instrument. I have to say not

         18  mine today, but usually they are. Please be assured

         19  that we will continue to treat odor complaints from

         20  wastewater treatment plants and NYOFCO as a

         21  priority. When a complaint is made to 3-1-1 about an

         22  odor coming from one of DEP's plants, the call is

         23  immediately forwarded to DEP's Emergency Call

         24  Center, ECC.

         25                 ECC assigns the call a complaint

                                                            37

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  number and plant staff may begin an investigation.

          3  Odor complaints about the New York Organic

          4  Fertilizer Company are treated in the same fashion

          5  as DEP plant odors with one enhancement; in addition

          6  to a priority treatment, NYOFCO odor complaints are

          7  referred to DEP's Bureau of Environmental

          8  Compliance, where an air and noise inspector is

          9  assigned to investigate a complaint.

         10                 All of the complaints are compiled in

         11  a monthly report which is shared with the Hunts

         12  Point Monitoring Committee. Staff also call

         13  complainants to inform them of the results of the

         14  investigation.

         15                 Together with 3-1-1, we're continuing

         16  to improve a system to ensure the complaints get to

         17  where they are going quickly and effectively.

         18                 Air quality. Particulates. The Hunts

         19  Point community and Council Member Arroyo, have made

         20  it very clear to us how important it is to limit

         21  negative affects on air quality, and we, of course,

         22  agree. Even though New York City has the cleanest

         23  air in 50 years, Citywide improvements are not

         24  necessarily felt equally in all neighborhoods.

         25                 Although all of New York City
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          2  apartment from Manhattan is in compliance with

          3  federal standards for PM 10, the largest type of

          4  airborne particles, New York City is not in

          5  compliance with federal standard for PM 2.5, the

          6  very small particles that are of particular concern.

          7                 The City is developing implementation

          8  plans in partnership with New York State in order to

          9  come into compliance, which would need to address

         10  various Citywide sources of PM 2.5, such as vehicle

         11  exhaust, boilers, chemical and manufacturing

         12  processes, and construction activities.

         13                 As of December 18th, 2006, the

         14  federal government created a much stricter standard

         15  by lowering the PM 2.5 standard, as measured over 24

         16  hours, from 65 micrograms per cubic meter, to 35.

         17  New York State is expected to announce new guidance

         18  criteria identifying an increase of PM 2.5 of two

         19  micrograms per cubic meter as measured over 24 hours

         20  as a significant impact.

         21                 This guidance criteria is of

         22  particular interest at Hunts Point because of the

         23  operation of diesel-fueled emergency generators

         24  which are a standard feature of all our plants to

         25  ensure continued operation when there is a problem
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          2  with the electrical grid.

          3                 At a minimum, regulations require

          4  that the emergency generators must be operated for

          5  three to five hours every month, and additionally

          6  one day per year for more intensive testing to

          7  ensure proper operation. Aside from routine testing,

          8  these generators are only operated when there is a

          9  problem with electrical power. That problem could be

         10  a blackout, or it could be a threat of a blackout

         11  caused by high electrical demand.

         12                 DEP is committed to manage the

         13  operations of the Hunts Point emergency generators

         14  so that they meet this new more stringent guideline.

         15  We can do that by using only ultra-low diesel fuel

         16  with less than 15 parts per million of sulfur.

         17                 It is also important to note that our

         18  decision on which fuel to use was not based

         19  primarily on financial considerations, but on the

         20  needs of emergency operations. In the past,

         21  emergency generators at all DEP plants used standard

         22  diesel fuel largely due to the unavailability of

         23  other reliable options. Although natural gas burns

         24  much cleaner than diesel fuel, it is not a viable

         25  option for back-up generators, in large part because
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          2  of storage problems. DEP must store a two-day supply

          3  of fuel at its plants; however, fire safety

          4  regulations prohibit us from storing a two-day

          5  supply of natural gas on site.

          6                 Fuel cells are another option we

          7  considered. Fuel cells, which are the cleanest form

          8  of power, are not appropriate for emergency

          9  situations, as they take time to reach operating

         10  temperature before they can provide electricity, a

         11  situation that defeats the needs of emergency

         12  response, and could endanger workers' health and

         13  safety and the integrity of the plant. Failure to

         14  provide power in an emergency could mean a discharge

         15  of untreated wastewater.

         16                 Fortunately, it is now possible to

         17  obtain a reliable source of ultra-low sulfur diesel

         18  fuel, and we plan to begin using it at Hunts Point

         19  within the next year. This will have a positive

         20  impact on limiting particulate emission. We can also

         21  reduce particulate emissions by limiting to five the

         22  number of emergency generators we have in operation

         23  on those occasions when we use them.

         24                 Fortunately, the need to use these

         25  generators does not arise very often. DEP's
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          2  wastewater treatment plants are normally run on

          3  electrical power, or to a lesser extent, the power

          4  obtained from burning the gases captured during

          5  sewage treatment.

          6                 For instance, other than for testing,

          7  the last time Hunts Point ran its emergency

          8  generators was in 2005.

          9                 To prevent blackouts or brownouts,

         10  DEP voluntarily participates in the Power

         11  Authority's Peak Load Management Program, known as

         12  PLM.

         13                 As part of the PLM program, on those

         14  days where there is a concern about peak demand, DEP

         15  will run some of its plants on emergency generators.

         16  In 2006, for example, seven of our four treatment

         17  plants each operated on emergency generators between

         18  the hours of noon and 6:00 p.m. on five separate

         19  days. In 2007 thus far we have had six days on which

         20  we operated the same seven plants on emergency

         21  generators. Our PLM agreement limits our

         22  participation in the PLM program to a maximum of 15

         23  days per year per plant. This would also be an

         24  appropriate place to add that DEP also intends to

         25  conduct an energy audit of its wastewater treatment
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          2  system, using five treatment plants with differing

          3  characteristics as benchmarks.

          4                 The Hunts Point Plant will be one of

          5  the five. This energy audit will take approximately

          6  18 months and will commence before the end of 2007.

          7  The goal of the study will be to identify systemwide

          8  efficiencies.

          9                 In addition to the hydrogen sulfide

         10  monitoring mentioned already, DEP has agreed to

         11  undertake air monitoring PM 2.5.  Consistent with

         12  the Mayor's PlaNYC, these measures will cumulatively

         13  address methods for minimizing air quality impacts

         14  from the plant on the community.

         15                 Air quality: Other pollutants. DEP

         16  prepared an analysis for NYSDEC which demonstrated

         17  that additional controls were not required to

         18  address non-criteria pollutants. The ranges in the

         19  monitored levels of the trace pollutants at

         20  locations throughout the City were examined to

         21  determine if there were any reasonable trends in the

         22  monitored values at the New York City monitoring

         23  sites compared with the corresponding Annual

         24  Guideline Concentrations, known as AGCs. For the

         25  most part, it can be seen that the monitored annual
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          2  concentrations of non-criteria pollutants have been

          3  decreasing over the past several years.

          4                 During preparation of both the DEIS

          5  and Final Environmental Impact study, sampling test

          6  methods for the estimation of acrolein were reviewed

          7  and it was found that there are no reliable

          8  quantification methods available. There is as yet no

          9  sampling method with the precision required to

         10  perform an acrolein emissions impacts analysis.

         11  Until such time that methods are developed and

         12  approved and test data for combustion sources are

         13  made available, acrolein impacts cannot be

         14  quantified.

         15                 In the past, host communities have

         16  often found NYCDOHMH staff helpful in explaining the

         17  health implications of exposure to air pollutants,

         18  or other compounds found in wastewater or used at

         19  wastewater treatment plants. DEP will request our

         20  colleagues at NYCDOHMH to join us for a meeting with

         21  the HPMC to discuss what is known about the health

         22  impacts from acrolein.

         23                 Remediation. As with the other

         24  parcels comprising the former Barretto Point site,

         25  the parcels that are the subject of this ULURP will
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          2  require remediation in accordance with a NYSDEC

          3  Remedial Action Plan. The remediation of all parcels

          4  that are the subject of this application, like the

          5  remediation of Barretto Point Park, will be

          6  conducted as part of the Barretto Point

          7  environmental restoration process which is under New

          8  York State DEC supervision.

          9                 Citizen participation is encouraged,

         10  and repositories for documents related to the

         11  remediation work on-site have been established.

         12                 In the first year of work, DEP

         13  estimates that a total of 2.75 acres will be

         14  remediated; 0.7 acre of which will be excavated of

         15  contaminated soil in the area of the former paint

         16  and varnish facility.

         17                 During the excavation, the area will

         18  be enclosed in a tent and the air vented through air

         19  pollution control equipment.

         20                 The Soil Management Plan will include

         21  procedures for handling soil excavated from below

         22  the soil cover and demarcation barrier during any

         23  future construction or utility replacement.

         24                 The institutional controls will

         25  include annual inspection and reporting. DEP will be
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          2  responsible for submitting a site management plan

          3  and a report to NYC DEC confirming that the

          4  institutional controls remain in place.

          5                 NYS DEC, I'm sorry if I misspoke

          6  before, it's NYS DEC will require that DEP certify

          7  on an annual basis that all institutional and

          8  engineering controls employed at the site are in

          9  place and effective. Performing as designed are

         10  capable of protecting the public health and the

         11  environment and are in compliance with the operation

         12  and maintenance plan.

         13                 The Operating Bureau, the Bureau of

         14  Wastewater Treatment responsible for implementing

         15  institutional control, institutional controls and

         16  health and safety requirements would be incorporated

         17  into the plant Operations and Management Manual,

         18  O&M, which will be updated after the soil management

         19  plan is approved by NYS DEC.

         20                 A Community Air Monitoring Program,

         21  CAMP, will be conducted to protect the community and

         22  park users from airborne contamination releases

         23  during the construction activities. The CAMP will

         24  monitor airborne contaminants, such as volatile

         25  organic compounds, or VOCs, particulate matters,
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          2  metals, and polycyclic hydrocarbons, PAHs, downwind

          3  of the site. If action levels specified in the CAMP

          4  are exceeded, increased monitoring, corrective

          5  actions to reduce emissions, and/or the cessation of

          6  work activities will be required. DEP will continue

          7  to work with Hunts Point Monitoring Committee and

          8  keep NYS DEC informed about the progress of the

          9  restoration program and air monitoring.

         10                 Air monitoring will be ongoing during

         11  the environmental restoration process. The data

         12  presented in the final engineering report that is

         13  submitted to NYS DEC.

         14                 Construction impact. Finally, I will

         15  address the practices and procedures we will

         16  implement to mitigate construction impact. Pursuant

         17  to the New York City Noise Code, Noise Control Code,

         18  DEP's contractor must have a noise mitigation plan

         19  for this site. Although the exact features of the

         20  plan will change over time, the location and type of

         21  construction activities change. DEP has already

         22  committed to a construction wall that would separate

         23  the construction site from Barretto Point Park.

         24                 Regarding dust, the following

         25  measures would be utilized to prevent fugitive dust
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          2  from construction activities becoming airborne. Use

          3  of water sprays to control dust during construction

          4  activities, covering open body trucks transporting

          5  materials likely to give rise to airborne dust,

          6  covering of excavated soil with plastic while

          7  stockpiled on site, and prompt removal of

          8  accumulations of soil and other excavated materials

          9  from the site and roads.

         10                 Now I would like to offer a more

         11  detailed of two areas where I do not feel that we

         12  can concur with the community's suggestions and why:

         13  placement of the digesters and waterfront access

         14  within the footprint of the plant.

         15                 Waterfront access is a priority goal

         16  of the Bloomberg Administration, so we have

         17  considered this very carefully. But after careful

         18  consideration, we believe that we cannot, because of

         19  health and safety concerns, provide access to the

         20  water within the footprint of the plant.

         21                 This has been a particularly

         22  confusing questions because we were able to provide

         23  waterfront access at Newtown Creek, another one of

         24  our wastewater treatment plants.

         25                 The reason is that the layout of the
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          2  two plants differ. At Newtown Creek we can provide

          3  waterfront access at a point where there are no

          4  active plant operations. At Hunts Point, we do not

          5  have that option. The facilities at Hunts Point are

          6  very close to the water, leaving little space for a

          7  path.

          8                 In addition, any pathway would have

          9  to intersect a working sludge dock. Use of the dock

         10  would require complete closure of the path, several

         11  times a day, and the width of the path would put

         12  pedestrians close enough to plant operations that at

         13  times they could not walk there without protective

         14  clothing such as hard hats. We could not safely and

         15  efficiently operate this plant with a walkway at the

         16  periphery.

         17                 We recognize, and are very

         18  supportive, however, of the Hunts Point Greenway,

         19  and as such we will continue the pathway along Ryawa

         20  Avenue. DEP reviewed the South Bronx Greenway Master

         21  Plan published by the New York City Economic

         22  Development Corporation in November 2006. The Master

         23  Plan for the Greenway recognizes that many segments

         24  of the Greenway would be located in highly

         25  industrial areas and the design and programming of
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          2  the individual segment reflects this understanding.

          3                 Improvements to this section of the

          4  Greenway consist of a 24 foot planted buffer between

          5  the plant site and the sidewalk along Ryawa Avenue,

          6  the introduction of a bikeway along the streets, and

          7  extensive street plantings.

          8                 Another aspect of this project that

          9  has generated a great deal of public discussion is

         10  the placement of the egg-shaped digesters. We have

         11  built egg-shaped digesters at Newtown Creek and they

         12  are in use at the Deer Island Plant in Boston. They

         13  are the most effective technology for processing of

         14  sludge into a product that is virtually odorless at

         15  this time. However, at 130 feet, these structures

         16  are indisputably very visible and the Environmental

         17  Impact Statement reflects that by characterizing

         18  them by having a significant visual impact. In

         19  choosing a site, DEP evaluated three locations; on

         20  the waterfront, in the interior of the plant at the

         21  existing digester location, and at the plant

         22  perimeter which puts them near Barretto Park.

         23                 The first alternative evaluated in

         24  the EIS would place the digesters along the

         25  waterfront. That's the salmon-colored space. This
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          2  scenario would put them farther from the park,

          3  reduce noise impacts on the park during construction

          4  and provide additional space at the plant to meet

          5  future needs.

          6                 It would, however, require filling of

          7  open water that creates space for the digesters. As

          8  you know, this requires a difficult and lengthy

          9  permitting process with New York State DEC and the

         10  Army Corps of Engineers, one with a low probability

         11  of success, since there are other viable options,

         12  and this is not a water dependent use.

         13                 Situating them on the waterfront

         14  would also affect the waterfront views from the

         15  park, thereby negating one of the two reasons for

         16  moving them in the first place.

         17                 Alternative two, would place the

         18  digesters on the side of the existing digesters

         19  which was shown in green, thereby eliminating their

         20  visual impact and reducing the noise in the park

         21  during construction.

         22                 This alternative, however, would add

         23  three years to the eight-year construction schedule.

         24  Replacement would have to be done one at a time and

         25  only three of four existing digesters would be in
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          2  service, reducing digesting capabilities for several

          3  years and would almost certainly produce more odor

          4  problems and lower quality biosolids.

          5                 Due to site constraints, there is

          6  very little room for construction staging, temporary

          7  power and piping connections would be needed, and

          8  welding near active digesters would be a very

          9  serious safety concern.

         10                 Even more importantly, we are now

         11  studying a range of approaches to reduce CSOs and

         12  manage anticipated increases in intense storms, as

         13  mandated in PlaNYC.

         14                 These cell storms, triggered by

         15  rising ocean temperatures, are already producing

         16  flooding in areas throughout the City, including the

         17  Bronx.

         18                 We must use our very limited space at

         19  Hunts Point wisely in the future, as we develop

         20  adaptation strategies to global warming.

         21                 If we need to increase wet weather

         22  capacity, additional treatment of wastewater should

         23  be placed well within the plant where odors can be

         24  more easily controlled, rather than at the

         25  periphery.
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          2                 Placing the digesters along the fence

          3  line at Barretto Point is the choice that is

          4  consistent with the sound operation of this plant

          5  into the future, because it leaves the interior

          6  space free for less community-friendly processes

          7  that may be needed in the future to meet new

          8  regulations, to use improving technologies, or to

          9  adapt to changes in the weather.

         10                 Because the egg-shaped digesters are

         11  fully sealed, and therefore highly unlikely to emit

         12  odors, they are among the most suitable processes to

         13  be located near a populated area.

         14                 Because the digesters will be visible

         15  to the park, I have directed our engineering and

         16  design team to hire a design architect, as we did at

         17  Newtown Creek, and we will look forward to working

         18  with the community to choose an attractive facing or

         19  treatment that allows the digesters, we hope, to

         20  become a positive visual presence in the community.

         21                 In addition to the unlikely odor

         22  impact, it should be noted that at the Barretto Park

         23  location, the digesters would not block the view of

         24  the waterfront. It would also only cash shadows for

         25  a short time in the morning. The park would be in
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          2  full sunlight, no later than 9:45 to 10:15 a.m. and

          3  for the rest of each day.

          4                 DEP remains committed to working with

          5  the community to be as good a neighbor as possible.

          6  I hope my testimony has addressed your concerns in

          7  question. Thank you for the opportunity to testify,

          8  and I'll be glad to try to answer any questions you

          9  have, or to ask my colleagues to do so. Thank you

         10  very much for your patience for the long testimony.

         11  There's been a lot of discussion and many questions

         12  posted about this and we wanted to address as many

         13  as possible. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you,

         15  Commissioner. And I did want to agree there has been

         16  a lot of discussion. Council Member Arroyo has

         17  worked very hard to address issues surrounding odor,

         18  construction, air quality, and I think the list goes

         19  on and on, and the Bronx Borough President has been

         20  involved as well, but I really -- before I ask any

         21  questions, because Council Member Arroyo has worked

         22  so hard and knows this issue inside and out, I

         23  wanted to give her an opportunity to either make a

         24  statement or ask questions.

         25                 And I did want to note that there are
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          2  some Coro Fellows that are here today. If would you

          3  like to stand up in the back? Thank you for joining

          4  us.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

          6  Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair. And welcome to

          7  the Fellows. We had a meeting yesterday, and what

          8  they're here for today is, I guess to see government

          9  in action. I suggest that they attend a hearing.

         10                 So, I'm so glad that you decided to

         11  join us today. I hope the experience is worth the

         12  effort and the time that you invest in it.

         13                 Commissioner, first, thank you very

         14  much to you and your staff. And Canty, Mark, who is

         15  trying to hide behind the door back there, we have

         16  had a lot of discussion. I have attended many

         17  community forums around this issue, and I am so

         18  pleased with the cooperation and the level of

         19  commitment that the agency has demonstrated and

         20  participated in. So, I thank you for your long

         21  testimony, because it does answer a lot of the

         22  questions that I certainly heard posed in public

         23  forums during the last six months or so.

         24                 And just so that I don't miss the

         25  opportunity to say thank you to everyone, Madam
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          2  Chair, the Chair of the full Land Use Committee,

          3  Melinda Katz, the staff at Land Use and Dan Avery

          4  who is the policy analyst for the Environmental

          5  Protection Committee, who has served as the

          6  technical assistant and advisor to most of us who

          7  don't understand half of what your testimony says

          8  because it's so technical, but today I understand it

          9  much better, thanks to Dan and his commitment and

         10  his support.

         11                 I want to thank the Hunts Point

         12  Monitoring Committee and its membership for your

         13  more than two and a half years of work. One of the

         14  things that I hope to see happen as a part of this

         15  process is that the life of that Committee can be

         16  extended past this ULURP action. So, it can continue

         17  to serve as a link between the community and the

         18  agency and the elected officials. They do very good

         19  work, and that I hope that in the process the

         20  technical assistance that they need as a committee

         21  will be provided in order for them to understand the

         22  intricacies of the information that we have to deal

         23  with, with regards to this plan. And my partners in

         24  government, in particular the Borough President's

         25  Office, Earl Brown, Paula and Laura, who is not
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          2  here, and the community board, who have joined in

          3  the partnership with us and this discussion to make

          4  sure that all of the community's concerns are

          5  addressed where feasible and appropriate, and that

          6  we remain reasonable in that process.

          7                 So, I want to thank all of those

          8  individuals and will certainly allow for my

          9  colleagues to ask questions because I have had the

         10  benefit of some technical assistance, and I'm sure

         11  that some of the members may not be there.

         12                 So, Madam Chair, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         14                 I did have a couple of questions.

         15  One, I know that in your discussions, I think,

         16  Commissioner, you mentioned an ad hoc committee

         17  being set up by the community board, but I wanted to

         18  echo Council Member Arroyo, if the Hunts Point

         19  Monitoring Committee is already in existence and has

         20  been dealing with these issues for an extended

         21  period of time, it makes more sense to me to

         22  continue the life of that committee as opposed to

         23  starting with a new one.

         24                 I wanted to ask in your testimony

         25  about odors. You mentioned that DEP will be covering
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          2  and treating air from an effluent channel that we

          3  have identified as a significant odor source that we

          4  are not now controlling. Are you referring to NYOFCO

          5  or a separate source?

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: If I may

          7  introduce Deputy Commissioner Doug Greeley, who is

          8  Deputy Commissioner of the Bureau of Wastewater

          9  Treatment.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Good

         11  afternoon, Ms. Chair and Council members. As part of

         12  our activities with HPMC during the middle of August

         13  we conducted a walk-around tour of the plant so that

         14  they could familiarize themselves with the

         15  inner-workings of the plant, and we had conducted an

         16  odor survey earlier in the year, it's basically a

         17  one-day walk-around characterizing known odor

         18  sources and took a look at characterizing their

         19  intensity and looking at what we could do with

         20  in-house forces to control odors very quickly, as

         21  opposed to deferring them to a capital project. And

         22  the effluent weir that you're talking about is

         23  something that we could probably handle by ourselves

         24  almost on a very short basis.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Where is it
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          2  coming from, I guess is what I'm asking? What's the

          3  source?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: It's

          5  within the plant, it's a stream of waste water that

          6  is not totally treated yet.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: But within this

          8  plant; is that what you're saying?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         10  correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: All right. So,

         12  that's going to be part of the odor mitigation. But

         13  you're doing a comprehensive survey and study now.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Of the

         15  entire community.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right. Beyond

         17  just this plant.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         19  correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: But we

         22  also had some housekeeping issues that we can tend

         23  to inside the plant that we will actipace (phonetic)

         24  on.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, in terms of
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          2  timing, so you're talking about things you can do

          3  in-house at this plant and working with NYOFCO,

          4  where you're really their sole contractor.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Patron.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right. What's the

          7  time frame in addressing those issues, versus your

          8  sort of longer term study of the whole peninsula?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Well,

         10  the longer term study would characterize things such

         11  as the fish market, some of the transfer stations,

         12  truck traffic. There is not a whole lot we could do

         13  about that, other than educate the community and

         14  bring it to the attention of responsible regulatory

         15  agencies. But it's to try to place the plant and

         16  NYOFCO in context with all of the odors that are

         17  noticed up in the Hunts Point area.

         18                 The time frame, we are kicking off I

         19  think eight days of survey that will happen

         20  throughout September and October. There will be a

         21  report written and I would expect that there would

         22  be an action plan that derives from that some time

         23  around the holidays.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Of this year.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: This
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          2  year.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And are you going

          4  to be taking any remedial actions before that survey

          5  is completed?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Before

          7  those issues that we identify that we can take care

          8  of rapidly, yes, we will.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Good.

         10                 I wanted to ask about air quality,

         11  and this is an area, it's a question where it's just

         12  not my area of expertise.

         13                 The Commissioner mentioned that the

         14  federal government had created a stricter lower

         15  standard of, you know, as measured over 24 hours, 35

         16  micrograms per cubic meter. And then later on you

         17  mention that the ultra low sulfur diesel fuel will

         18  have less than 15 parts per millions of sulfur; is

         19  that the same measurement? So, I guess I'm not clear

         20  on how we're addressing the federal standard.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SISKIND: The

         22  standard for particulate matter --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And by the way,

         24  introduce yourself for the record, please.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SISKIND: Oh,
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          2  I'm sorry. My name is Esther Siskind. I'm an

          3  Assistant Commissioner with the Bureau of

          4  Environmental Planning and Analysis. And our Bureau

          5  is in charge of the Environmental Impact Statements

          6  prepared for Department projects.

          7                 The particulate matter 2.5 standard,

          8  the small particles, that standard was lowered by

          9  the federal government recently. It went into effect

         10  December 2006. By using ultra low sulfur diesel, we

         11  will be able to reduce the particulate matter 2.5

         12  emissions from the emergency generators. So, ultra

         13  low sulfur diesel does two things; it reduces the

         14  sulfur levels, and it also reduces the particulate

         15  matter 2.5 emissions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So we will be in

         17  compliance?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SISKIND: We

         19  will, there are several standards and we will meet

         20  the thresholds of 2 micrograms per cubic meter that

         21  any one facility would be permitted to discharge to

         22  the air, yes, which is the most stringent standard.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, that was an

         24  affirmative answer. We will be meeting the newer

         25  federal --
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SISKIND: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: -- Guidelines.

          4  Okay.

          5                 And then separate and apart from that

          6  there is the issue of sulfur; is that what you're

          7  saying?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SISKIND: The

          9  sulfur, the plant is in compliance with all

         10  standards related to sulfur dioxide.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         12                 In terms of construction impacts,

         13  when you talked about, the Commissioner mentioned a

         14  noise mitigation plan, what will be the penalty

         15  imposed? I mean, in essence DEP regulates noise,

         16  you'll be policing yourself. So, what happens if you

         17  are exceeding guidelines in the Noise Code?

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: The way the new

         19  Noise Code -- and we're actually very tough

         20  enforcers of ourselves, it's quite a separate unit

         21  -- the way the new Noise Code works is that a

         22  construction company, before it begins construction

         23  is required to put in place a plan in which they do

         24  whatever they can reasonably to quiet all of their

         25  activities. So, it would be mufflers on drills, it
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          2  might be building a construction wall, it would be a

          3  whole variety of things from a pretty

          4  well-established menu that we've been working with

          5  the construction industry on for over a year now for

          6  them to get geared up for this. And they develop a

          7  plan that tries to take anything that they are

          8  making noise with and reduce it as much as is

          9  feasible. And they have that plan on-site. If we get

         10  a complaint, and they do not have that on-site and

         11  ready to be visible, then they are not in

         12  compliance.

         13                 If they have that plan and noise is

         14  still bothering people, then we will work with them

         15  to try to improve that plan. But the first big step,

         16  which is going to make the construction project much

         17  quieter than any construction project that has come

         18  before, because they simply haven't had very many,

         19  if at all of these things in place, will be these

         20  basic things, which is muffling, barricades, all

         21  kinds of things to muffle the noise and basically to

         22  contain the noise within the site.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. No, I ask

         24  because I've had a bad experience with a

         25  construction project in my district where they did
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          2  have a barricade and mufflers, but the mufflers come

          3  off the drills, or DEP comes and they have things

          4  on-site, but then they're not using them, and

          5  there's monitoring done where they're exceeding

          6  allowed decibels but they just continued to work and

          7  do the work and that's not a pleasant experience for

          8  the communities. So, I hope that that --

          9                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, for a

         10  construction project that was already under

         11  construction before July, we had agreed with the

         12  construction industry that we would be somewhat

         13  flexible, in terms of the requirements for two

         14  reason; one is that those companies had already bid

         15  on a project, and since some of this remediation is

         16  fairly extensive, they had not put that into their

         17  bid. So that we would really emphasize projects

         18  starting and going forward.

         19                 The other thing is, although this is

         20  not always the case, very frequently projects get

         21  quieter as they go up. You know, if they are

         22  blasting that's the noisiest --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: -- And then when

         25  they get enclosed, they're even quieter. But for
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          2  projects that were in their early stages right after

          3  July and we allow them 60 days to get a plan in

          4  place and a 60-day leeway which we would simply do

          5  education before we started issuing them tickets, it

          6  was definitely a slow start-up of enforcement.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. Council

          8  Member Comrie, do you have any questions?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

         10  afternoon, Commissioner.

         11                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Good afternoon,

         12  Council Member.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You mentioned

         14  in your testimony that it was difficult to get

         15  source odors from fixed monitoring stations. Have

         16  you figured out a way to source odors without having

         17  fixed monitoring?

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Esther.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SISKIND: The

         20  reason why it's difficult to determine the source

         21  from a fixed monitoring station is that, for

         22  example, it would be located at the plant boundary,

         23  and if there are other sources in the community, the

         24  sources would be picked up by the monitoring

         25  station.
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          2                 The way to determine what

          3  specifically comes from the plant site is to do odor

          4  monitoring at the plant, and then project those

          5  impacts from the various plant sources at the plant

          6  fence line, through various dispersion models that

          7  are used for air quality, and that's specifically

          8  what we did in the environmental impact statement.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So with the

         10  fact that you do have other odor sources in that

         11  area, how do you know that you're effectively

         12  abating odors that are within your plant area? Is it

         13  a real possibility that there can be an overall

         14  abatement plan for the entire area, working in

         15  conjunction with sanitation with the waste treatment

         16  locations?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SISKIND: Well,

         18  there are two standards that we look at: one is the

         19  State standard at the fence line of ten parts per

         20  billion; and then a second is a guidance value from

         21  the CEQR, from the City Environmental Quality Review

         22  guidance, that is very, very stringent. It's one

         23  part per billion at a sensitive receptor.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm going to

         25  interrupt, if I may, because I think that it is, at
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          2  least for me, we've looked at this in several

          3  locations now, and although at the finest technical

          4  level you can't always get exactly the monitoring

          5  you want in a particular location, I think on an

          6  aggregate level you can see if they're trends, and

          7  you can certainly see if you've been having

          8  problems, you know, as we always say, the best

          9  monitor is the noses of the people who live in the

         10  community. If there is a problem, and we identify a

         11  site, and we remediate it in some way, and that

         12  problem goes away, then we think we've probably done

         13  a pretty good job.

         14                 If we remediate it and complaints

         15  continue to come over a period of time, people are

         16  really sure it's coming from that location, I find

         17  it's generally coming from that location. And

         18  although there are other sites, waste management and

         19  all kinds of other sites, what we hope to do with

         20  this second broader study is start to tease them out

         21  separately so that those other agencies can deal

         22  with them. But we think that NYOFCO's and our

         23  sources are so obvious and people are so familiar

         24  with what that smells like, that between our

         25  monitoring and feedback from the community, and our
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          2  working on site that we'll be able to control those

          3  and ratchet them down.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And when you

          5  say "control and ratchet," you mean bring it down to

          6  a more acceptable level?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We really out to,

          8  in most cases, be able to get it down to what I

          9  would call an acceptable level, which is there

         10  should not be an odor most of the time. There may be

         11  occasionally because of operating circumstances, but

         12  most of the time there shouldn't be a bothersome

         13  odor.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you also

         15  stated that you're trying to take the lead with this

         16  larger study to look at how you can reduce odor and

         17  the overall Hunts Point conflicts area, right?

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, we can, as

         19  I'm sure you're aware, you know, our sister agencies

         20  love us when we come around with the list of things

         21  they're doing wrong.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         23                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: But we are going

         24  to do a second study. We are discussing with Mayor's

         25  Office of Operations how that study should be led to
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          2  make sure we want to get as much participation early

          3  on as possible from all the agencies that might have

          4  some kind of regulatory or participation. So, we

          5  haven't pinned that down exactly yet, but we are

          6  committed and the Mayor's Office is committed to

          7  making that happen, we just haven't worked out the

          8  details yet.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. And

         10  you're going to make sure the community groups and

         11  all the above are part of that study group?

         12                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: As you did

         14  with the Station 6, the redesign plan, and where you

         15  kept the community informed?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes. We assume we

         17  would have no other choice, nor would we want to do

         18  it any other way.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, I have

         20  absolute faith in your ability to keep the community

         21  informed, and I just want to say at the outset --

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Why is that?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Why is that?

         24  Because I've been working with DEP on a development

         25  of a plant in my district that will be dealing with
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          2  polluted water, and working to convert it into

          3  potable water and also pump it. It's actually two

          4  different stations. And we had services, we've had

          5  community meetings, we've had public meetings and

          6  public hearings, we've had Malcolm Pirnie, which was

          7  listed in here as the consultant, who did an

          8  excellent job of outreach and information. I have a

          9  high regard for Commissioner Lloyd and her team to

         10  be up front about the issues.

         11                 Doug Greeley and I have known each

         12  other about 20 years with wastewater issues, and

         13  sewer treatment issues in my particular district,

         14  and he's always been a person that tells you the

         15  truth, even though you don't want to hear the

         16  answers sometimes. So, I have a lot of faith in

         17  DEP's ability to at least tell you what's going on.

         18  You may not always like what you hear, but they've

         19  always been straightforward with their answers and

         20  responses, and I just bring it up because I know

         21  that DEP will, if they send a committee to come up

         22  with an overall odor reduction study for that Hunts

         23  Point area, I think that I would have faith in them

         24  following through with your community input. I would

         25  just ask that there is a continued community input
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          2  and I think the opportunity, I see an opportunity

          3  here because I've been in the Hunts Point center,

          4  you know, and I've gotten that smell, and it's not a

          5  healthy thing. And if there is new technology to

          6  reduce it, I think it would be helpful to the

          7  overall communities who I know have high asthma

          8  rates and high medical problems as a result of it.

          9  So, if there is a silver lining in this project, I

         10  think that that's it, the ability to coordinate and

         11  come up with new technology to deal with the smell,

         12  if there's issues within the sites.

         13                 And I think Assistant Commissioner

         14  Greeley said in his testimony that there are

         15  internal issues that are going to be addressed, but

         16  if there's an opportunity to go at those other sites

         17  and address their internal issues also, I think that

         18  would be a great benefit for the Hunts Point

         19  community, and I'll keep working with my esteemed

         20  Council member. That's why I stayed at the hearing

         21  because I just want to articulate my faith in your

         22  agency and my ability to see a silver lining in this

         23  process.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Just one other
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          2  question. Is it possible to do a community education

          3  facility at this point in the new building, like

          4  you're doing with the Station 6 project?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: That has been one

          6  of the possible projects that has been considered,

          7  and there is an ongoing process involving charrettes

          8  with community participation, we're working with a

          9  group that we think has done a good job to date. So,

         10  I'm not sure where that will come out in the end,

         11  but that's been one of the things that's been looked

         12  at and suggested.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.

         14  Well, I think, again, with my first point, I think

         15  that would be helpful to keep the community involved

         16  and aware of all of the issues so they can be

         17  partners with you, and not just yelling at you all

         18  the time. So, there is a big difference.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: No, the work with

         20  the community, the community has been really very

         21  generous with their time and working issues through

         22  with us and hearing what our limitations are in

         23  those cases. We really appreciate that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         25  That's all of the questions I have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          3                 And Commissioner Laird, did you want

          4  to read this testimony as well?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LAIRD: If

          6  you'd like I will. I'll be brief.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sure.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LAIRD: Good

          9  morning. Well, I'll have to change this already,

         10  good afternoon, Chair Lappin, and members of the

         11  Subcommittee. On behalf of Mayor Bloomberg, First

         12  Deputy Mayor Harris and Commissioner Adrian Benepe,

         13  I'm Joshua Laird, Assistant Commissioner for

         14  Planning and Natural Resources with the Parks

         15  Department. With me is Antonio Mikalosis (phonetic),

         16  who is with our Parklands Division. I'm testifying

         17  before you on the mapping portion of these ULURP

         18  applications, the first portion being the mapping of

         19  an 11-acre waterfront park that already exists,

         20  consists of five acres of upland area and six acres

         21  of lands under water.

         22                 Community Board 2, in which Hunts

         23  Point Peninsula is located, is greatly underserved

         24  by open space, and we're grateful for the support

         25  and cooperation of DEP in our effort to create more
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          2  parks for area residents.

          3                 The park site, the Barretto park

          4  site, which DEP agreed to transfer to us some years

          5  ago, will certainly help, has helped now that it's

          6  open, the sufficiency of open space in the area.

          7                 Let me just note quickly that along

          8  with Hunts Point Riverside Park at the foot of

          9  Lafayette Avenue, our completion of concrete plant

         10  park just up towards the mouth of the Bronx River,

         11  which will be completed next summer, with that we

         12  will have completed three new waterfront parks in

         13  the Hunts Point area within the past three years,

         14  all of which will be connected by Hunts Point

         15  Greenway, which is being planned by EDC right now.

         16                 Upon assignment of the Barretto

         17  parcel in 2001, Parks began working with the

         18  community to design and construct the park with a

         19  wide variety of facilities. The park has been opened

         20  to the public since late 2006 and consists of a

         21  waterfront esplanade, a grass and stone

         22  amphitheater, a large lawn area, basketball and

         23  volleyball courts, a beach area, playground, boat

         24  storage, comfort station, brownfield remediation,

         25  tidal wetland plantings and rip-rap fortifications
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          2  were also components of the park development.

          3                 The first of the two applications

          4  would map as parkland this 11-acre parcel, as I

          5  said. Looking ahead, the Parks Department is

          6  enthusiastic about working with DEP to add an

          7  adjacent 1.2 acre waterfront site, which is the

          8  second application, as a mapped addition to Barretto

          9  Point Park.

         10                 This additional site which remains

         11  under DEP's jurisdiction, will be used as a staging

         12  area for their upgrade project and will be

         13  surrendered to Parks once DEP's work has been

         14  completed.

         15                 The mapping of this parcel as

         16  parkland is included in the ULURP before you, and if

         17  approved will be filed following DEP's determination

         18  that the area is no longer needed for construction

         19  staging.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have a couple

         21  of quick questions. One, so as far as I understand

         22  it, there are two applications for mapping parkland.

         23  One is the piece that is already open and being used

         24  at the Park; is that correct?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LAIRD: That's
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          2  correct. That's application ending in '09.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And that has been

          4  filed. My question is the process. Because you have

          5  the second application for mapping of parkland

          6  that's not going to be available for awhile. So,

          7  what's the time line and process for the two

          8  applications?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LAIRD: Well,

         10  both applications are before you now, so we're

         11  completing the mapping of both. If the existing

         12  Barretto Point Park, the 11-acre parcel is already

         13  in our Parks Department's portfolio, has been

         14  improved and is open as a park, it functions as a

         15  park, although is not currently mapped as parkland.

         16  We have many properties under our jurisdiction that

         17  are managed as are parks but are not mapped as such.

         18  So, the first application will map that 11-acre

         19  parcel, and we're sort of effectively killing two

         20  birds with one stone here with the second

         21  application, we're proactively mapping the 1.2 acre

         22  parcel, holding back, City Planning will hold back

         23  on the filing of that map until DEP is ready to

         24  transfer the land to us, and when they do, a few

         25  years from now, rather than have to do another ULURP
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          2  application at that time, we'll be through it, and

          3  the entire park will be mapped.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right. Makes

          5  sense. Does it smell in the park?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LAIRD: I have

          7  not heard any reports of odors. We have only heard

          8  peels of laughter coming from park constituents.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have a feeling

         10  we're going to hear from other --

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LAIRD: Well,

         12  okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, what are we

         14  going to do to fix that? I mean, are we confident

         15  that the measures proposed by DEP are going to

         16  remove the odors in the park? There's no point in

         17  having a park if it smells so badly nobody wants to

         18  use it.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LAIRD: We are

         20  confident. We are as confident as Council Member

         21  Comrie that DEP is taking the odor issue seriously.

         22  They have made a commitment that they intend to

         23  fulfill, and, you know, I stand corrected, there

         24  clearly are reports of odors in the park right now,

         25  but we're also getting a high level of usage from
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          2  the community. It's already a popular site, and I

          3  think as the odors clear it, it will only improve

          4  the enjoyment of the park.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Commissioner, did

          6  you want to speak to that at all? I see you nodding

          7  your head.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Just to say that

          9  I think the things we're proposing are going to make

         10  a big difference over time. I think that the odors

         11  from both the plant and from NYOFCO come from a lot

         12  of little different parts of the operations and that

         13  it takes the willingness to really get at those and

         14  keep them under control, but I think that the

         15  sustained conversation we've been having over the

         16  past couple of years has really raised the awareness

         17  of the Bureau Wastewater Treatment to these issues,

         18  as well as to the Department overall has really

         19  changed how we're approaching our contract with

         20  NYOFCO in terms of the level of initiative we're

         21  taking to make improvements there or have them make

         22  improvements.

         23                 They have been, I think the community

         24  has been very effective in making NYOFCO aware of

         25  the things that are bothering them, so they are now
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          2  really eager to partner with us on making some of

          3  those improvements. So I'm very optimistic that we

          4  can make a difference.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I hope so.

          6  Because I know that Council Member Arroyo has the

          7  burden of a lot of different kinds of facilities in

          8  her district and this is really an amenity for the

          9  community that is supposed to help offset the burden

         10  that her constituents bear, and open space that's

         11  not enjoyable to use is not an adequate amenity.

         12                 Council Member Arroyo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         14  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         15                 A couple of detailed questions, and I

         16  think more importantly my hope is that before we

         17  vote this application out of the Subcommittee we

         18  would have been able to reach an agreement around

         19  the commitments that are being stated here by DEP

         20  and we get those commitments in writing. And more

         21  importantly, provide us with an opportunity to look

         22  at a much broader issue regarding odor in the

         23  community and identifying the sources not only of

         24  NYOFCO and the water treatment plant, but of all of

         25  those industries that are functioning in that
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          2  community, and how those industries are contributing

          3  to the issue and the concerns regarding odor.

          4                 And more importantly, target

          5  corrective measures to get those businesses to

          6  conform and address the source of their operation to

          7  eventually, over the course of the next several

          8  years, bring the issue of order under control in the

          9  community.

         10                 Every public meeting you go to, the

         11  number one complaint is the odor in the community,

         12  and if out of this process we can walk out of here

         13  with a commitment to, one, continue the monitoring

         14  committee work, give that committee a very active

         15  role in reviewing the plan and the studies that come

         16  out of everything that we commit to, having an

         17  opportunity to provide input and make

         18  recommendations to how we can improve whatever comes

         19  out of the studies; and more importantly, put some

         20  teeth into it so that the Committee, together with

         21  the community board and the elected officials can

         22  hold someone accountable for not doing the right

         23  thing.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: And I want to be

         25  clear, Council Member, that we are committed to
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          2  doing that second study that looks beyond our

          3  facilities and pinpoints other sources. It's just

          4  not crystal clear yet who should lead that to make

          5  sure we're able to pull in all of the agencies as

          6  effectively as possible.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: I

          8  appreciate that. And more importantly, that the

          9  committee be a partner in that process. I can't say

         10  that enough.

         11                 I was wondering why you didn't bring

         12  a rendition of the plant with you today? Those

         13  beautiful digesters. Do you have a rendition?

         14                 .

         15                 (Audience participant not audible.)

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: The

         17  commitment to hire an architect, a design architect

         18  to help us change what that may look like from the

         19  community's perspective I think is an important one.

         20  I'd like to know when we can expect some feedback

         21  about what recommendations will be made around that,

         22  and that the Hunts Point Monitoring Committee be,

         23  again, part of the discussion and provide input for

         24  the selection of whatever design ultimately comes

         25  out of it.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm going to be

          3  working with DDC because they have a roster of

          4  design architects whom they recommend and who are

          5  available without going through a long procurement

          6  process. And, so, I hope from that group I will be

          7  able to recommend someone who I think would have a,

          8  bring a very good sensibility to this, and I would

          9  like that person to meet with the interested parties

         10  in the community and get their sense and their

         11  concerns and, you know, really start that connecting

         12  around what their concerns are and what would feel

         13  good in that area as quickly as possible.

         14                 So, my recollection was the last time

         15  I did this with them it took about two months to get

         16  that person up and ready to work. So, if we could

         17  target the end of October, early November, to

         18  deliver on.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         20  Thank you. Now, there's a blue section right next to

         21  the park; the staging area becomes parkland?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SISKIND:

         23  (Speaking from the audience.)

         24                 Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:
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          2  When can we expect to have to put some capital money

          3  into a park?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SISKIND:

          5  (Speaking from the audience.) I don't think we have

          6  a date.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: It

          8  will be staging during the life of the construction

          9  of the project. My understanding is this is an

         10  eight-year process, so it's going to outlive

         11  certainly us, given term limits.

         12                 The blue section, which is where the

         13  proposed site for the digesters, there is a section,

         14  additional property for Phase III upgrade; what is

         15  that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: As I mentioned

         17  during my testimony, under PlaNYC the Mayor has

         18  asked us to look at how we should adapt to climate

         19  change and global warming. We  have already within

         20  DEP done about five years' worth of work with

         21  consultants, trying to take those global projections

         22  and localize them to this area. We actually started

         23  out looking at the watershed upstate, because one of

         24  the things that is being projected, as well as more

         25  frequent, more intense storms, is more frequent,
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          2  more intense droughts, and that was really the

          3  beginning of the concern of the staff.

          4                 And, so, we have continued that work

          5  and they are about to give us a lot of information

          6  about how they think it's going to affect all of our

          7  facilities, from our reservoirs down to our

          8  wastewater treatment plants, our sewers, everything.

          9  So, coming out of that, one of the things that we

         10  know from what we just lived through on August 8th

         11  and before with the Nor'easter, is that these very,

         12  very pinpointed intense storms related to the rising

         13  temperature of the ocean, are getting more frequent,

         14  and that they hit a small area with tremendous

         15  amounts of rain, and that that is in places around

         16  the City causing flash flooding.

         17                 We are trying to look at all of the

         18  areas around the City that we think may be

         19  vulnerable with that, and come up with ways that we

         20  think we could absorb those very intense storms.

         21                 Now, some of it will be not

         22  traditional ways. Green roofs, blue roofs, using

         23  parks as a way to do better water retention, like

         24  the blue belts out on Staten Island, but some of it

         25  also will be more traditional and the end of the
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          2  process of collecting stormwater is always the

          3  wastewater treatment program. At the end of the day,

          4  the more you can get through there, the better it

          5  is.

          6                 So, one thing we may do, right now

          7  we're expected to have capacity in our wastewater

          8  treatment plants, double capacity for rainy days,

          9  for wet weather. We may decide that we really need

         10  to have more, take more storm water through those

         11  plants, as they do up in Boston, where they take

         12  virtually all of the stormwater through the plants,

         13  in order to keep it from flooding the community.

         14                 So, we're just starting to think

         15  about this, but what we are starting to do at all of

         16  our plants is to say until we know what we're going

         17  to need to do to protect our neighborhoods from

         18  flooding, we need to try to stay as flexible as we

         19  can, in case we need to pull that stormwater through

         20  this area to keep it from flooding low line areas in

         21  the communities within the drainage area served by

         22  each of those plants.

         23                 So, we don't know what is going to go

         24  there. We don't know if anything is going to go

         25  there, but at this point it is part of the footprint
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          2  of the plant that we will be thinking about

          3  long-term, and as I said earlier, obviously our

          4  emphasis will be if we should put something there in

          5  the future to try to make it something that creates

          6  as little disturbance for the community as possible.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: So,

          8  when do you expect Phase III to be identified --

          9                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We don't even

         10  know that. The Mayor has asked us to start to come

         11  up with adaptation plans. We're probably a year away

         12  from having sort of quantified the amount of water

         13  we think we're trying to absorb, so it's not going

         14  to be short term.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: And

         16  finally, a comment about NYOFCO, and my concern

         17  regarding the commitment, while it is a private

         18  company, DEP is its only customer, and in my

         19  opinion, puts DEP in an incredibly strong position

         20  to negotiate. The changes that I think are necessary

         21  in order to make that plant operate in a more

         22  community-friendly way, more importantly to minimize

         23  its impact on the environment in the community, and

         24  it's something that I hope we can, between now and

         25  the vote that this Committee takes tomorrow morning,
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          2  firm up some language around that.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We would be happy

          4  to do that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

          6  Thank you, Commissioner.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And the last

          8  thing I wanted to say, since you brought this up,

          9  Commissioner, and I know that Mark Lanigan is here

         10  knows, my community is one that suffers from

         11  flooding and when there are heavy rains and a lot of

         12  the basements of the buildings along East End Avenue

         13  have purchased very expensive and complicated

         14  systems to deal with the flooding that happens in

         15  their buildings all the time, we've heard from some

         16  of the major medical institutions that are in my

         17  district, they have problems with flooding as well.

         18  So, it's something that DEP has been working with my

         19  office to address but I wanted to mention since you

         20  brought it up today, but it is a big problem, and

         21  obviously buildings shouldn't have to purchase their

         22  own systems to deal with wastewater.

         23                 I don't think there are any other

         24  questions, so I wanted to thank you all for

         25  testifying and move on to our next panel.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you very

          3  much for your time.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LAIRD: Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I wanted to ask

          7  in the interest of time that the next few people who

          8  speak try and limit your comments to three minutes.

          9  We have a clock here. Because we do have a caucus

         10  meeting that begins in 15 minutes downstairs and we

         11  have another Land Use Subcommittee meeting as well.

         12                 Paula Caplan from the Bronx Borough

         13  President's Office, to be followed by John Robert.

         14  And if you have testimony, hand it to the Sergeant.

         15  If anybody else who is testifying today has written

         16  testimony they want to submit to the Committee or to

         17  us, you can give it to the Sergeant-At-Arms.

         18                 MS. CAPLAN: Good afternoon, Council

         19  members. My name is Paula Luria Caplan. I represent

         20  Bronx Borough President Adolfo Carrion, and I will

         21  read a statement on behalf of the Borough President.

         22                 The Hunts Point Water Pollution

         23  Control Plant is an essential element to New York

         24  City's infrastructure, treating wastewater from the

         25  Bronx, Rikers Island, City Island and Hart Island.
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          2  The New York City Department of Environmental

          3  Protection has been upgrading the plant pursuant to

          4  two State-mandated plans.

          5                 This application concerns the Phase

          6  III upgrade, improved solids handling and enhanced

          7  nitrogen removal to meet State standards. The

          8  application also seeks to officially map the

          9  adjacent Barretto Point Park as permanent waterfront

         10  parkland, along with 1.2 additional acres currently

         11  used for DEP construction staging.

         12                 These mapping actions which culminate

         13  a partnership between the Hunts Point community and

         14  public agencies to create more open space and

         15  recreational facilities merit approval.

         16                 Mindful of the statutory need to

         17  improve water quality, along with ongoing concerns

         18  about plant construction and operations, my support

         19  for the site selection action is subject to the

         20  DEP's agreement to certain conditions:

         21                 First, communication and oversight.

         22  Building on its past cooperation, DEP should forge

         23  an even more effective working relationship with the

         24  community and the Hunts Point Monitoring Committee.

         25                 To this end, I call for a commitment
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          2  from DEP to fund a community liaison, along with an

          3  office and necessary support for the duration of

          4  construction and for a period thereafter.

          5                 This commitment could include funding

          6  for technical advisors to assist the committee and

          7  the community liaison as the committee deems

          8  necessary with the review of construction data,

          9  procedures and documents to ensure that negative

         10  community impact are avoided.

         11                 The committee will be actively

         12  involved in monitoring the mitigation of

         13  construction impacts and if measures are not

         14  successful will expect DEP to devise alternate means

         15  of regulation -- of mitigation. Sorry.

         16                 Next, odor control. I appreciate the

         17  odor control measures already implemented at the

         18  plant and DEP's commitment to ensuring that

         19  equipment performs at the highest standard.

         20                 However, with Hunts Point still

         21  burdened by odors, a comprehensive odor control

         22  analysis is needed. I ask DEP's commitment to

         23  further odor studies in the community and continued

         24  work toward improving odor reporting and response

         25  systems, including the City contracted NYOFCO's
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          2  sludge processing facility.

          3                 Third, air quality. Given the high

          4  levels of pollution and extremely high asthma rates

          5  in Hunts Point and throughout the South Bronx, any

          6  avoidable emissions are unacceptable. In this

          7  context I question the plant's participation in Con

          8  Edison's peak load management program.

          9                 I recognize the PLM program's value

         10  in regulating energy consumption during times of

         11  high demand, however, use of dirty diesel generators

         12  would contribute to the degraded air quality and

         13  asthma emergencies that typically coincide with peak

         14  load periods.

         15                 I therefore urge DEP either to

         16  withdraw from the PLM program, or preferably upgrade

         17  its equipment to clean technologies.

         18                 Use of highly polluting diesel

         19  generators contradict New York City's clean energy

         20  and emission reduction goals. DEP should take the

         21  lead in employing clean technologies and energy

         22  efficiency towards back-power sources, as well as

         23  its normal operations.

         24                 I also expect the DEP to offer a

         25  generous program of community benefits that will be
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          2  determined on a consensus basis. Notwithstanding

          3  these stipulations, the Phase III upgrade is clearly

          4  needed. Subject to the above conditions, I recommend

          5  approval of this application.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Please.

          9                 Introduce yourself for the record.

         10                 MR. ROBERT: My name is John Robert. I

         11  am District Manager of Bronx Community Board No. 2.

         12  I will read a statement that was written by our

         13  Chairperson shortly after this ULURP item was

         14  approved by the community board on April 25th.

         15                 It says, I must start by

         16  congratulating and thanking all the members of the

         17  Hunts Point Monitoring Committee, HPMC, whom for the

         18  past two years have done an incredible job in

         19  representing the best interests of the Hunts Point

         20  and the Bronx community during the proposed plan for

         21  the continued upgrade of the Hunts Point Waste Water

         22  Pollution Control Plant.

         23                 I must also thank our technical

         24  consultant Mathy Stanislaus for articulating the

         25  concerns raised by the community and the HPMC.  It
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          2  was imperative to have someone bring professional

          3  advice to us and to the table.

          4                 I would be remiss, if I did not send

          5  a special thanks to the New York City DEP

          6  Commissioner Emily Lloyd, to the entire staff, that

          7  has worked on this planning process. I can honestly

          8  say that this is the first time in this community

          9  that a public works project of this cost and

         10  magnitude has gone through such a well planned,

         11  involved, transparent community process.

         12                 Because this project will have

         13  significant impacts in our community and the City in

         14  general, this process we feel is imperative in

         15  achieving a proper and fair balance between the

         16  community concerns and the City's public need.

         17                 Although Community Board 2 has voted

         18  to continue with the process of this plant's

         19  upgrade, we request and expect DEP to continue to

         20  work with Community Board 2, the HPMC consultants,

         21  the Bronx Borough President's Office and our Council

         22  member during the entire plant upgrade process to

         23  assure minimal negative impacts to our community.

         24                 We have requested that DEP continue

         25  to work with the community during the construction
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          2  so that we can monitor the implementation of

          3  mitigation measures.

          4                 We also expect that DEP will install

          5  monitoring stations along the plant's perimeter in

          6  order to monitor the impacts to the community. We

          7  expect that this process will continue to be

          8  transparent, therefore, we also request that a

          9  community liaison be hired to act as a point person

         10  to both DEP and the community.

         11                 I believe that the transparent

         12  process we have gone through will serve as a

         13  template for other public works projects that have

         14  and must involve communities throughout New York

         15  City and the country.

         16                 Once again, we thank everyone who has

         17  been involved in this process and look forward to

         18  continuing to work as partners on this project.

         19                 Sincerely Roberto Garcia, Chairman,

         20  Bronx Community Board No. 2.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. I want

         22  to thank you and the other members of the community

         23  board for being so active and engaged in this

         24  process. It's great to see.

         25                 MR. ROBERT: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: There are going

          3  to be two more panels. The next panel will be Rafael

          4  Acevedo, a member of the Hunts Point community, HPMC

          5  member, and Barbara Warren, Sustainable South Bronx,

          6  and Miquela Craytor, Sustainable South Bronx.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

          8  Okay, you can flip a coin, decide who is going to

          9  testify first. Before you start, identify yourself

         10  for the record, please.

         11                 MR. ACEVEDO: Good afternoon. My name

         12  is Ralph Acevedo. I'm a HPMC member, and I was born

         13  and raised in the Hunts Point community.

         14                 I just want to talk briefly about the

         15  alternatives to the digesters. In addition to the

         16  years of the environmental burdens experienced by

         17  this community, the Hunts Point community has

         18  historically been and continues to be underserved

         19  with respect to parks and open space.

         20                 We have one of the highest

         21  percentages of population under 18 years old in the

         22  City in our youth, as well as our families and

         23  senior citizens need open space and parks. South

         24  Bronx Greenway and Barretto Point Park are the

         25  result of many years of work by South Bronx
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          2  residents and its elected officials.

          3                 At these amenities are two important

          4  steps forward in the making of the South Bronx

          5  livable and sustainable. These amenities are there

          6  for all of the residents to enjoy and will be used

          7  for playing, walking, sitting and bicycling.

          8                 These expansions cannot reduce the

          9  value, the use of the enjoyment of these amenities.

         10  All impacts through the users, the greenway must be

         11  fully acknowledged and avoided and DEP must conduct

         12  its analysis of impacts to the greenway based on the

         13  assumption that residents will not sit on benches

         14  for up to an hour.

         15                 Impact to the greenway cannot be

         16  dismissed on the basis of DEP's misguided notion

         17  that there will only be transit use of this amenity.

         18  Furthermore, the idea of extending the greenway

         19  along the water front must be reexamined. In light

         20  of our recent trip to the Newtown Creek and

         21  proximity of the nature walk to the plant, we see no

         22  reason why the greenway cannot also be designed to

         23  work in conjunction with the plant. Is safety issues

         24  can be resolved in Newtown Creek, it can certainly

         25  be resolved here.
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          2                 Through good planning and scheduling,

          3  the placement of the greenway on the Hunts Point

          4  property along the waterfront can be designed and

          5  managed to ensure that the loading of sludge can

          6  occur. There is no reason why Hunts Point residents

          7  cannot get access to the waterfront.

          8                 The recently completed Barretto Point

          9  Park must likewise be protected to ensure that it

         10  can serve its intended function.

         11                 However, as currently planned, the

         12  Phase III upgrade will entail the placement of four

         13  large egg-shaped digesters adjacent to the park. The

         14  bulk and height of the digesters will be

         15  overwhelming to park users. The 130 foot stainless

         16  steel eggs will tower over adjacent park structures

         17  and significantly affect the way kids and adults

         18  experience the park.

         19                 Furthermore, the eggs will likely

         20  impact views for those walking and bicycling along

         21  the Ryawa Avenue and Minida Street (phonetic)

         22  portions of the greenway.

         23                 The EIS implies that the community

         24  agreed to live with the impact of the eggs on the

         25  park because the two projects were contemptuously
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          2  planned, but this is not the case. The community had

          3  no idea of the extent of the impact of eggs on the

          4  park until the DEIS was released. The community

          5  strenuously objects to significant visual impact on

          6  the park.

          7                 Fortunately, DEP has identified an

          8  alternative in the DEIS that would avoid these

          9  visual impacts all together.

         10                 Site Plan Alternative 2 would place

         11  the egg-shaped digesters in the location of the

         12  current digesters. DEP's initial analysis of this

         13  alternative was that construction would be more

         14  complex, take longer and cost more.

         15                 However, the current estimate

         16  suggests that it will only take an additional year

         17  and a half of construction per pair of digesters.

         18  Further, the additional cost for this alternative is

         19  about $15 million which is an increase of about two

         20  percent to the current $700 million budget for all

         21  three phases of the expansion.

         22                 DEP also expressed some concern that

         23  under this scenario the treated sludge may not meet

         24  the PSRP. However, it was later clarified that it

         25  was only under maximum design sludge production
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          2  conditions which are based on a 20 45 population

          3  that the PSRP may not be met. And to the extent that

          4  NYOFCO will have extra capacity as the eggs

          5  digesters at Newtown Creek are put into operation,

          6  the City will give the capacity -- the City will

          7  give the capacity to treat additional sludge that

          8  does not meet the PSRP.

          9                 Lastly, DEP has identified a number

         10  of speculative potential future plant needs that

         11  could be placed at the current digester locations,

         12  however, in absence of a definite approved plan for

         13  further projects, this is part of DEP's current

         14  proposed action. Such future speculative actions

         15  cannot be considered with CEQR analysis, or the

         16  related ULURP proposal.

         17                 DEP must examine Site Plan

         18  Alternative 2 more carefully and thoroughly. It

         19  represents a viable alternative to the current plan

         20  for placing the egg-shaped digesters next to the

         21  park and would preserve a critical community

         22  amenity.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         24                 MR. ACEVEDO: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The Sergeant has
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          2  not been setting the clock, but I don't know if Ms.

          3  Warren is going to speak next. Which of you is Ms.

          4  Warren? Okay. In the interest of time, you can't

          5  read this entire statement. So, if you could

          6  summarize or pick a few highlights, I would

          7  appreciate that. But it will certainly be entered

          8  into the record in its entirety.

          9                 MS. WARREN: Good afternoon, Council

         10  Member Lappin and Councilwoman Arroyo, and other

         11  members of the Committee. My name is Barbara Warren.

         12  I'm here today representing Sustainable South Bronx.

         13  Sustainable South Bronx has been a key participant

         14  in the Hunts Point Monitoring Committee and working

         15  on the plans for the upgrade.

         16                 I want to focus on two things that's

         17  most important regarding this, and that is for the

         18  Council to exercise its clear authority to ensure a

         19  greater degree of accountability, in terms of what

         20  DEP does in this regard on this plant; one, for the

         21  impact of the community in and near Hunts Point, and

         22  the ratepayers for the City of New York, who pay the

         23  bills for sewage and water, as well as some of the

         24  highest energy costs in the nation.

         25                 It is essentially our position that
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          2  no additional land and no land sewage, solid waste

          3  or sludge treatment capacity at Hunts Point should

          4  be granted to DEP unless the City Council requires

          5  more accountability from this agency.

          6                 There is a large number of problems

          7  here. One, this area has more capacity for

          8  wastewater treatment, sewage, sludge than any other

          9  community in the City of New York, so I'm going to

         10  try to go quickly over some of these things.

         11                 Despite the importance of these

         12  treatment works, in general DEP has given short

         13  shrift to community concerns for a very, very long

         14  time. And I want to say I've been involved with DEP

         15  for quite a number of years since the original

         16  Sludge Citizens Advisory Committee. I saw that

         17  dewatering plant shortly after it was first built in

         18  the Bronx, and it wasn't operating correctly then.

         19  The emissions control was supposed to be automatic

         20  with the addition of chemicals, instead a worker had

         21  to remember to do it. You know, every so often he

         22  would dump some chemicals in. It wasn't operated

         23  correctly.

         24                 The odor consultants that DEP hired,

         25  they claim that they were the best anywhere. The
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          2  best odor consultant. They're no longer using them.

          3  They identified the sludge dewatering plant as a

          4  major source of odors that needed to be corrected.

          5  The same problem was identified in 1996, was not

          6  corrected again in 2003. Now we have a new set of

          7  consultants. I think that's an appalling record. In

          8  other words, things that were supposed to be

          9  corrected, your own consultants identified a

         10  problem, they didn't correct it. And that's why I

         11  say we have to have accountability.

         12                 DEP has not been good neighbors for

         13  this community, and it's inexcusable to plan a $700

         14  million upgrade and not make corrections that will

         15  make people's lives livable. People experienced this

         16  this last weekend, I heard from residents there,

         17  they could not survive where they were living. They

         18  had to go down to the waterfront to get away from

         19  the odors in the community over the weekend they

         20  were so terrible.

         21                 The community has pointed out an

         22  issue of conflict of interest on behalf of DEP

         23  because they proposed the plant, they do the EIS,

         24  they do the construction, et cetera, we need some

         25  way of having a third party monitor in this

                                                            103

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  community because they are not responsive.

          3                 I want to just talk a little bit more

          4  about odors, because that's a key issue here. Again,

          5  these were the best consultants they said anywhere,

          6  and I compared what DEP has now committed to,

          7  according to the EIS, with what their consultants

          8  had recommended earlier. The bottom line is there is

          9  a number of problematic odor areas amounting to way

         10  over 44 percent, that was quantified by their

         11  consultants, of the odor potential are not being

         12  addressed. They're not being addressed, the sludge

         13  dewatering, the centrate tank, the emissions control

         14  for the centrate tank, centrate distribution and

         15  overflow pipe, the screen's building and secondary

         16  aeration.

         17                 So, we know right now that they're

         18  not doing enough on odor. I just can't even imagine

         19  why they would be given permission to do anything

         20  else when they can't make their plant operate, and

         21  they should be cleaning their own house first.

         22                 I'm concerned about an odor study

         23  right now that looks outward if they don't do these

         24  improvements, because they've used it in the past to

         25  point the finger at waste transfer stations, to
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          2  point the finger at NYOFCO, rather than cleaning up

          3  their own operation.

          4                 I'm really glad to hear about the

          5  energy audit, and I have a lot of detail in this

          6  testimony. I won't go over it, but I want to say

          7  that we need to make this plant very energy

          8  efficient. They have not done so yet, and it's

          9  critically important.

         10                 Other sewage treatment plants, when I

         11  looked at this, I looked at this energy efficiency

         12  issue, other treatment plants are reducing their

         13  energy use when there is a peak load problem.

         14  Instead, what DEP is proposing here is to run diesel

         15  generators in a community that has enormous air

         16  quality problems.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         18  much. I'm sorry to have to ask you to conclude --

         19                 MS. WARREN: A lot of choices here.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  -- At this

         21  point.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MS. CRAYTOR: Good afternoon,

         24  Chairperson Lappin, Councilwoman Arroyo, Councilman

         25  Liu. My name is Miquela Craytor. I work as a Deputy
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          2  Director for Sustainable South Bronx. As a member of

          3  the Hunts Point Monitoring Committee, we've been a

          4  very active participant on commenting on the plans

          5  for the upgrades at this particular water pollution

          6  control plant. As an organization that is focused on

          7  the tenets of environmental justice, and

          8  sustainability, we have taken a very broad look at

          9  the issues surrounding this plant.

         10                 With the help of Barbara Warren, and

         11  the other technical consultant that has been

         12  advising the HPMC Committee, we respectively request

         13  that the Committee and the Council exercise a clear

         14  oversight and authority to ensure a greater degree

         15  of accountability, as it relates particularly to the

         16  community as it is affected on a daily basis by the

         17  smells of this particular plant and the way this

         18  plant interacts with other odor-generating

         19  facilities such as NYOFCO.

         20                 Essentially one of the things that I

         21  wanted to highlight in my testimony is that, you

         22  know, as Barbara pointed out, this particular

         23  community has been a target for a number of

         24  environmental injustices, because this community not

         25  only handles all the Bronx waste in terms of sewage
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          2  treatment, it also handles much of the City's

          3  dewatering facilities. So, other sewage from other

          4  parts of the City come to this particular facility

          5  to be treated.

          6                 Again, this is an extra burden this

          7  particular community has to bear. With the extension

          8  of this facility, it continues to add to that.

          9                 Additionally, we are the only

         10  community that handles the creation of sewage

         11  pellets. And, again, that facility handles over 70

         12  percent of the entire city's sewage.

         13                 So, when you combine those factors

         14  alone, and the fact that the ongoing odors are

         15  continuing to be a problem, the requests that we've

         16  submitted through the committees, through the

         17  Borough President's Office, through the

         18  Councilwoman's office, we really believe that they

         19  have to be strictly enforced through this ULURP

         20  action.

         21                 And I will just highlight the last

         22  recommendations. We believe that the energy audit

         23  should be conducted immediately, that we shouldn't

         24  wait nine months or to the end of the year. Because

         25  this particular facility is affected so greatly in
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          2  this neighborhood that it needs to be a priority.

          3                 Additionally we believe that this

          4  should be done simultaneously with the expansion or

          5  the creation of those egg digesters, and that they

          6  should be kept on site rather than expanding in the

          7  footprint of the facility again the impact that

          8  these visually will have as well as casting shadows

          9  on a park that was meant to basically offset the

         10  expansion of this facility is erroneous.

         11                 And lastly, we also believe that --

         12  I'm sorry, not lastly, but funding a community

         13  liaison and technical consultant is very, very

         14  important to the community at large, and as well as

         15  to the HPMC Committee, that a comprehensive

         16  odor-controlled plant must be implemented. They've

         17  done a number of studies but we have yet to see the

         18  results of any change.

         19                 And lastly, the community benefits.

         20  That we definitely need to see the process of that,

         21  the cherrette, be an open process for the members of

         22  the HPMC Committee. That's all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And it

         24  is very comprehensive testimony. You even have an

         25  appendix of resources. It's very impressive.
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          2                 MS. WARREN: I should say, also

          3  brought the PG&E report and the EPA, if you want

          4  that, I can provide you a hard copy, if anyone is

          5  interested in that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, thank you

          7  very much.

          8                 Paula Fields from Moms on the Move;

          9  Wilfredo Febre, from Moms on the Move; and Maria

         10  Torres.

         11                 MS. FIELDS: I'll be quick. Good

         12  afternoon. Thank you so much for having me. My name

         13  is Paula Fields. I'm an advocate for Moms on the

         14  Move, a liaison community activist in Hunts Point

         15  area also. I lived in the area for over 30 years.

         16  I'm a parent and a grandmother.

         17                 The reason why DOP has not showed

         18  these digester egg-shell, martian looking, I don't

         19  know what you want to call them, is because it's a

         20  horror. It is horrible. The Hunts Point Barretto

         21  Park, which is here, happens to be a beautiful park

         22  that the City has granted the Hunts Point area and

         23  the members of the community to enjoy.

         24                 To see these big, 13-story egg shell

         25  digesters to be placed right outside that park is
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          2  inconceivable.

          3                 As a person with a disability,

          4  asthmatic, living in Hunts Point, knowing that Hunts

          5  Point has the highest level of asthma, individuals

          6  with asthma, and to endure the smell that comes from

          7  I don't know what, but it is definitely a stench,

          8  definitely a horrible smell, and I think the Council

          9  should consider the fact that as members of the

         10  community, as taxpayers, and as human beings,

         11  something has to be done to make DEP accountable for

         12  the odor control in the -- how do you say, the

         13  proposal of the whole project, and they should have

         14  like an outside agency to overlook all of the issues

         15  that we have concerns with DEP, because they are the

         16  ones who has the proposal, they are the ones who do

         17  all of the overlooking and the siting and odor

         18  control, and I feel that they need to have someone

         19  super policy (sic) them in the whole process.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MR. FEBRE: Good afternoon, Chairman

         22  Lappin and Council Member Arroyo. I thank you for

         23  allowing me to speak.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Can you state

         25  your name, please.
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          2                 MR. FEBRE: Oh, I'm sorry.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: For the record.

          4  That's all right.

          5                 MR. FEBRE: I'm nervous. My name is

          6  Wilfredo Febre. I'm a long-time resident of the

          7  Bronx, and live in the Longwood section right near

          8  Hunts Point. Most of my thunder has been stolen by

          9  eloquent statements back, so in terms of my

         10  testimony, just relates to the fact that those egg

         11  digesters, 130-foot egg digesters, should be located

         12  on their premises, on their footprint, nowhere near

         13  the park, for reasons that have already been stated.

         14                 But my biggest concern is the fact

         15  that over the years, and this problem has been going

         16  on for easily ten years, is that they speak about

         17  the odor but nothing has ever been done.

         18                 Finally, EPA, when they came out with

         19  the edict with the PM 2.5, that is a critical

         20  requirement, as far as I'm concerned, and something

         21  that should be monitored in the facility. Because

         22  that measures the particulates of all the sources,

         23  not only from a diesel engine or from any of the

         24  normal processes, but also the odors. So, if they

         25  meet that requirement, then by default, then your
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          2  odors are controlled also. And that goes, also for

          3  what goes on in NYOFOC.

          4                 The other thing that bothers me,

          5  since we're burdened with the fertilizer company,

          6  that the materials that are taken to that plant from

          7  the other facilities after dewatering is very

          8  problematic, because there is no set logistics set

          9  up for delivery of this material, and I've found,

         10  and I've done my studies which are very

         11  unscientific, when I smelled that odor, it seems to

         12  happen in times of the day that are in the

         13  afternoon, sometimes in the evening, and to me it

         14  appears that they're probably coming from the trucks

         15  from the other facilities, and that's something that

         16  should also possibly be looked at.

         17                 But my biggest concern is the fact

         18  that we should look at and make sure that the DEP

         19  follows the 2.5 requirement.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MS. TORRES: My name is Maria Torres.

         22  I am a member of the HPMC Committee, as well as the

         23  President and Chief Operating Officer of the Point

         24  CDC, which is a community center in the Hunts Point,

         25  as well as a resident, and a parent of two children
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          2  in the community.

          3                 As, you know, what we've gone through

          4  today and the other testimony has stated, Hunts

          5  Point has suffered for many years from an

          6  over-abundance of environmental burdens, the

          7  Bruckner, the Sheridan, the Cross Bronx, the Major

          8  Deegan, the major sources of diesel fumes of

          9  particulates. We are home to waste transfer

         10  stations, wastewater treatment plants, and the only

         11  facility in the City that pelletizes sludge, NYOFCO.

         12  Our kids have one of the highest asthma rates,

         13  highest rates of asthma, as hospitalizations in the

         14  City, and have the additional burden of one of the

         15  lowest rates of open space in the City. Only two

         16  percent of the community district is open space,

         17  which puts CB 2 in the lowest five percent of the

         18  community boards in the City.

         19                 We need to improve the health of our

         20  residents. We need to reduce current levels of

         21  pollution. We need to increase the amount of safe

         22  usable green space, and we need to reverse the long

         23  history of environmental impacts to the community.

         24                 The plant expansion cannot add to the

         25  burden. The plant expansion must be part of a new
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          2  effort to create a sustainable environment. The

          3  expansion cannot be allowed to diminish the value of

          4  our brand new open spaces, and must be built with

          5  the goal of bettering Hunts Point, of bettering the

          6  Hunts Point environment.

          7                 This means DEP setting an example

          8  that will do more than the minimum, that it will

          9  change its operations and install pollution controls

         10  so that we can build a systemic community in Hunts

         11  Point.

         12                 I believe they went into PM 2.5 and

         13  the levels and the acceptable levels, you know, that

         14  they're using as a baseline, we'd also like to see

         15  them clean up their generators and peak load

         16  management program. And if they're going to

         17  participate in that, if they could use a less dirty

         18  form of energy than diesel.

         19                 And then in moving forward, we would

         20  like to move forward in partnership with DEP, as we

         21  try to make Hunts Point a more livable and

         22  sustainable community. We need to improve the health

         23  of the residents, and we need to address residential

         24  needs for housing, open space and sustainable jobs.

         25  DEP can help with all of these goals by becoming an
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          2  environmental leader and by making the two

          3  City-owned facilities in Hunts Point models of

          4  minimal environmental impacts.

          5                 These facilities could be operated in

          6  such a way to reduce pollution burdens, rather than

          7  to increase them, and could become anchors in our

          8  effort to improve the community.

          9                 If the internal conflict at DEP that

         10  is created by being a regulator and operator could

         11  be resolved, we believe that DEP could make some

         12  significant changes that would benefit Hunts Point

         13  and other overburdened communities in the City.

         14                 Some other things that we'd like to

         15  see that were touched upon, we'd like to see DEP to

         16  provide resources, including an office for community

         17  liaison, who can serve as a go between and between

         18  DEP and the community during construction. We'd like

         19  to make sure that that's ensured. We would like a

         20  reexamination of the routing of the greenway along

         21  the waterfront. We want DEP to continue to work with

         22  HPMC and its consultant during construction

         23  activities so that we can monitor implementation of

         24  mitigation measures and prevent impacts to the

         25  community, as well as maintain a technical advisor,
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          2  as they did during the DEIS. We'd like to see that

          3  resume.

          4                 And we want that DEP install at least

          5  two monitoring stations, one at the park and one

          6  along the greenway, to monitor the impacts to these

          7  receptors during the expansion of their plant and

          8  construction. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 Council Member Arroyo. There is

         12  nobody else signed up to testify; is that correct?

         13  Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: I

         15  just want to thank you all for being here.

         16                 MS. FIELDS: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: And

         18  on the short notice that you got of the hearing,

         19  thank you for your participation, and your

         20  collaboration in helping me understanding the

         21  details.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 MS. FIELDS: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 This hearing is closed, and this

          3  meeting will be recessed until 9:30 tomorrow

          4  morning.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 1:50 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 5th day of September 2007.
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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